STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
11/9/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for November 9, 2018.




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Minutes for October 16, 2018.
CONSENT AGENDA
1 For possible action, approval of the Justice Court Quarterly Report.

II For possible action, approval of business licenses First Readings:
A. OMBOLI INTERIORS INC - Contractor / 4200 Rewana Way ~ Reno, NV
B. ADKORE STAFFING GROUP LLC - General / 4200 W. 115th St ~ Legwood, KS
C. MICHAEL CLAY CORPORATION - Contractor / 410 E. Minor ~ Winnemucca,
NV
D. PICKETT, KELM & ASSOCIATES - General / 4100 Duval Rd ~ Austin, TX
E. FISHER SAND & GRAVEL,dba: ARIZONA DRILL&B-Contractor/1302 W.Drivers
Way~Tempe,AZ
F. DANNY WAYNEHAM, dba: SAWDUDE DESIGNS - General / 1130 Harmony ~
WMCA, NV
G. PROGRESS WIRELESS - Contractor / 2133 Donald Dr #3 ~ Moraga, CA
H. HOLDER CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3300 Riverwood Pkwy ~ Atlanta, GA
I. ATLAS COPCO RENTAL LLC - General / 2306 South Battleground Rd ~ La Port,
X
J. CHIKO AIRTEC CO., LTD - General / 2-27-24 Hakushima ~ Osaka, Japan
K. COLIN GORDON ASSOCIATES - General / 150 North Hill Dr ~ Brisbane, CA
L. ALPINE LOCK AND KEY, INC - General / 811 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV
M. SOUTH STAR RISK CONSUTLING, LLC - General / 1059 Redfish St ~ Bayou
Vista, TX
N. ENGINEERED TOOLING SYSTEMS - General / 2780 Courier NW ~ Grand
Rapids, MI
O. WEIGL CONCRETE, LLC - Contractor / 3550 Barron Way ~ Reno, NV
P. PROSPECT PEAK LLC - Contractor / 177 Walnut Dr ~ Fernley, NV
Q. NEESER CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 455 US Hwy 395 N ~ Washoe Valley,
NV
R. MTEX INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS GMBH - General / 7 Kirchstrafe ~
Roansburg, Germany
S. TYRES INTERNATIONAL INC - General / 4637 Allen Rd ~ Stow, OH
T. RYAN SESSIONS, dba: HANDYMAN SERVICE - Home Business /7770 Opal
Bluff Dr ~ Reno, NV

I For possible action, approval of Fire Prevention Week Proclamation.

IV For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $622,984.71 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $2,602,224.64.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

19

16.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Canvass of the General Election results held in and for Storey County, Nevada on
November 6, 2018.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and possible action on Bill No. 109, the first reading of Ordinance No. 18-
298, an ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.04 Buildings and
Construction, to adopt the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International
Wildland-Urban Interface Code, and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
2018 International Wildland-Urban Interface Code, amending section 15.04.080 Fire
District requirements, and providing for other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for General Business License - U.S. Security Associates, 1320 Freeport
Blvd., Sparks, NV 89434. Security Guard Service Provider.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and Possible action to approve Resolution No. 18-519 announcing an
intention to lease a portion of 1705 Peru Drive to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no

rent.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Amending of existing liquor license for the Ponderosa Saloon. Add Off-sale.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit 2018-043 is a request to allow the applicants to convert an existing
detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family on a developed
residential property. The subject property is located at 2650 Castle Peak Road,
Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN)
003-331-11.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Variance 2018-044 is a request by the applicant to allow the front yard setback for the
construction of a new single family residence to be reduced from the required 20-feet




to O-feet. The property is located at 381 S. E Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-132-26.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

A request for a Parcel Map (File 2018-046) to divide an existing 72.53 acre parcel into
four individual parcels of land. Two parcels will be linear in nature and follow the
Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the second will follow the railroad
alignment. The remaining two parcels will be approximately 26.67 and 42.29 acres in
size. The subject property is located south of Waltham Way on either side of the
Amsterdam travelled way, including the Amsterdam travelled way, and having
Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-092-11, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The project
is a division of Parcel 3-A-1 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 94355.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Business License Second Readings:

A. OXFORD INSTRUMENTS AMERICA INC - General / 300 Baker Ave ~ Concord,
MA

B. CALIBER HOME LOANS INC - General / 1525 S. Belt Line Rd ~ Coppell, TX

C. COMPLETE CONCRETE - Contractor / 7481 Deveron Dr ~ Reno, NV

D. ENLIGHTED INC - General / 930 Benecia Ave ~ Sunnyvale, CA

E. JAG BROADCAST VIDEO - General / 2051 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV

F. FREEDOM HOME HEALTH LLC - General / 3680 Grant Dr ~ Reno, NV

ITEM WITHDRAWN DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and possible action on Bill 105, the first reading of Ordinance No. 18-296,
an amendment to Title 17 Zoning of the Storey County Code involving Chapter 17.30
CR Commercial Residential zone and Chapter 17.28 C Commercial zone to add a use
of private garage to the list of allowed uses, and other properly related matters.
Additional information including, but not limited to, draft text may be obtained from
the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org, or viewed
online at http:/ /storeycounty.org/517/Updates. In addition to the provisions of the
NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board a statement supporting or
opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and/ or zoning ordinance.

CORRESPONDENCE

I Correspondence from ISO regarding Notification of Publication of BCEGS
Classification.

Il Correspondence regarding the denial of an agenda item request from Druscilla
Thyssen.

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)




22.

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

e

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(c) a member of the public may request the supporting material for
the meeting from Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk, at (775) 847-0969. Additionally, the
supporting materials may be found at www.storeycounty.org.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or




(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 11/5/2018; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

P

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

2.

Title: Approval of the Minutes for October 16, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775-847-0969

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

Supporting Materials: Sce attached

Fiscal Impact: O

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

| Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey (via telephone), Commissioner
Gilman, Congressman Amodei, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens,
Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Administrative
Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Jeff Nevin,
Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin, Virginia City Senior Center Director Stacey Gilbert,
IT Director James Deane, Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki, Outside Counsel Robert Morris

1. CALL TO ORDER MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

Chairman McBride introduced Nevada Congressman Mark Amodei.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Congressman Amodei led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 16, 2018.
County Manager Whitten requested that item 7 - Staff reports, and item 8 - Board reports, be moved
to after item 19, Business Licenses, due to time constraints for Commissioner Gilman. Commissioner

McGuffey is present via telephone.

Motion: I move to approve Agenda, moving items 7 and 8 to the last portion of the meeting,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Congressman Mark Amodei reviewed the background and commented on the issue of obtaining a
zip code for the River District and TRI in Storey County. Congressman Amodei explained how




Congressman Mark Meadows assisted in getting the new zip code. The number for the zip code will
be 89437.

Next, Congressman Amodei discussed Interstate 11 - a major north/south arterial - from Arizona to
the Pacific Northwest. This is a long-term project. Congressman Amodei explained why Storey
County would be interested and reviewed possible routes. This is at least a decade away and will be
an important issue in the future.

Issues regarding wild horses were also discussed, including a recent round up - which is being
investigated. Congressman Amodei will report back when there is more information.

Congressman Amodei reviewed the Technical Corrections Bill (Lands Bill) which was passed, dealing
with issues in Lincoln County, White Pine County, and Storey County. Certain requirements will be
taken away and he is not expecting to hear that this will take another 5 or 6 years to implement like in

the past.

Information regarding the Technical Corrections Bill and wild horse issues, will be given (to the
County) as soon as it is received.

County Manager Whitten reviewed past connections with Congressman Amodei, including the fact
that they have been working on the Zip Code issue for about 20 years. Congressman Amodei has
always been here for Storey County. The issuance of the new zip code is a huge milestone. Thank
you to the Congressman for his efforts.

Congressman Amodei discussed ways to thank Congressman Meadows for his assistance with the
zip code issue.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for September 18, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the Minutes for September 18, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 2, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve Minutes for October 2, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. OXFORD INSTRUMENTS AMERICA INC - Gen/ 300 Baker Ave ~ Concord, MA
B. CALIBER HOME LOANS INC - General / 1525 S. Belt Line Rd ~ Coppell, TX




C. COMPLETE CONCRETE - Contractor / 7481 Deveron Dr ~ Reno, NV
D. ENLIGHTED INC - General / 930 Benecia Ave ~ Sunnyvale, CA

E. JAG BROADCAST VIDEO - General / 2051 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV

F. FREEDOM HOME HEALTH LLC - General / 3680 Grant Dr ~ Reno, NV

II For possible action, approval of resolution 18-514, a resolution to direct the County Assessor to
prepare a list of all the taxpayers on the secured roll in the County pursuant to NRS 361.300(3).

IIT For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of, payroll $522,207.85 and accounts payable
in the amount of $287,012.01.

IV For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-499, granting Historic Fourth Ward School
Foundation a sum not to exceed $120,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Fourth Ward School
Building and promoting the history of the Comstock and Storey County history.

V For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-500, granting Community Chest Inc., a sum not
to exceed $234,492.00 for the purpose of funding health and human services programs.

VI For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-504, granting Liberty Engine Company No. 1
Inc. a sum not to exceed $10,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Comstock Firemen's Museum
and its historic contents.

VII For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-505, granting the Mark Twain Community
Center a sum not to exceed $25,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Mark Twain Community
Center and for community outreach and improvement.

VIII For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-506, granting the Nevada Rural Counties RSVP
Program Inc., a sum not to exceed $7,050.00 for the purpose of providing essential programs for
Storey County seniors, veterans, adults with disabilities and caregivers.

IX For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-507, granting the Storey County Senior Citizens
Center the sum of $135,000.00 for the purpose of maintaining the Storey County Senior Center for
providing programs and serviced to seniors to promote independent and healthy lifestyles.

X For possible action, approval of Resolution no. 18-508, granting the St. Mary's Art Center, a non-
profit entity, a sum not to exceed $60,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the St. Mary's Art Center, a
County-owned building and supporting arts and culture through education and cultural offerings.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for October 16, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by

unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports




8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment):

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 18-513 approving Notice of
Completion and Acceptance of the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin presented Resolution 18-513, accepting substantial
completion of the Virginia City Sewer Improvement Project. The project has been completed on time
and within budget.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve Resolution 18-513, Notice of Completion and Acceptance of the Virginia
City Sewer Improvement Project, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman,
Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGulffey . ...

Prior to vote, Chairman McBride commented that someone had gone to residents and business
owners telling them this project was behind schedule and over budget. As pointed out, this was
totally false information. Thank you to all who participated in this project - the largest Virginia City
public works project in modern day history.

Mr. Whitten said actually (the project) was early. Due to cost savings, we were able to circle back and
get more work done than originally thought. One project was installation of four storm drains at no
cost to the County and a savings to NDOT who was going to contribute to the cost of the drains. The
“fake news” is totally frustrating.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Mr. Whitten thanked the Ames Construction team for the great work. Ms. Nevin presented this team
with a plaque and certificates in appreciation of their work.

Mr. Whitten also expressed thanks to Farr West Engineering representatives for their engineering on
this monumental project. Ms. Nevin also presented a plaque and certificates of appreciation to the
team members from Farr West.

Ms. Nevin also presented a plague and certificate to USDA, Rural Development representatives.
Without USDA grants of just under $15 million, this project would not have been done.

Mr. Whitten said USDA Rural Development is an invaluable partner to the County.
Ms. Nevin presented Mike Nevin, All Comstock LLC, with a plaque and certificate.

Mr. Whitten explained that Mr. Nevin was brought out of retirement for this project as he was the
one who basically structured the project. It ended up being a lot more work than was anticipated.
Thanks for a job well done.

Mr. Nevin commented this project is actually three months ahead of schedule - quite a milestone.

4




Mr. Whitten acknowledged and thanked representatives from Broadbent, who were always on site to
preserve and protect the historic integrity of what was found while excavation was being done.
There were some amazing discoveries. A report will be out by the end of the year.

Ms. Nevin presented a plaque and certificate to Broadbent & Associates representatives.

A Certificate of Appreciation was given to Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki and the Public
Works staff.

County Manager Pat Whitten was also presented with a Certificate of Appreciation in recognition of
his leadership on this project.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action on Bill 102, the second
reading of Ordinance No. 18-293, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction
to adopt the 2018 International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing Building, Energy
Conservation, Fuel Gas, Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and Plumbing, and the
2017 National Electric Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban
Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018
Northern Nevada Amendments, and providing for other properly related matters.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris presented this Ordinance for second reading - approving new
International Codes, including Northern Nevada amendments specific for use by the County.
Changes affecting Storey County only are also included. This Code will be effective under the
normal course of business - projects started under 2012 Code, could proceed and be completed under
that code.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 18-293, an ordinance amending chapter 15.04
Buildings and Construction to adopt the 2018 International Codes for Building, Residential, Existing
Building, Energy Conservation, Fuel Gas, Mechanical, the 2018 Uniform Codes for Mechanical and
Plumbing, and the 2017 National Electric Code, the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018
International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association
Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments, and providing for other properly
related matters, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible action on Resolution No. 18-515
adopting regulations consistent with ordinance 18-293 amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and
Construction to adopt the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland Urban
Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA) and the 2018
Northern Nevada Amendments, and providing for other properly related matters.

5




Robert Morris said initially this item was proposed as an Ordinance but has been changed to a
Resolution. This Resolution adopts those portions of the new Codes as regulations for the Storey
County Fire District and is consistent with the Ordinance adopted.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: [ move to approve Resolution 18-515 adopting the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018
International Wildland Urban Interface Code, the 2017 National Fire Protection Association
Standards (NFPA) and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the 2018 International Fire Code,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of agreement issuing
license to Switch Business Solutions LLC (Switch) by which the County authorizes Switch to install a
data communications line in the County's right of way within a portion of the Tahoe Reno Industrial

Center.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis said this is an agreement for the County to issue a license to
Switch for installation of a data transmission line within the County right-of-way within Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center. The term of the agreement is initially for 20 years with 5 year renewals, with a
$500 or $1 per lineal foot annual fee - whichever is greater.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: I, Lance Gilman, Commissioner, move to approve the rights-of-way licensing agreement
authorizing Switch Business Solutions LLC (Switch) to install a data communications line within a
portion of the County's right of way in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, and authorize the
Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: 2018-036 Special Use Permit by applicant Dylan Li. The
applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate an outdoor establishment promoting tourism and
local activities. The establishment will consist of a small movable stand that will act as a table and be
located within the front patio area of an existing commercial establishment (Firehouse Grill, BBQ &
Saloon). The property is located at 171 S. C Street, Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number

(APN) 001-073-28.

Planner Kathy Canfield explained this Special Use Permit is required because of the outdoor
operation. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the request.

Applicant is present.

Public Comment:




None
Vice Chairman McGuffey: Understands this is just a stand to hand out information.

Chairman McBride: Correct, no retail sales.

Ms. Cantfield read the findings of facts:
This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-036 to operate an outdoor establishment
promoting tourism and local activities. The establishment consists of a small movable stand
that will act as a table and be located within the front patio area of an existing commercial
establishment (Firehouse Grill, BBQ & Saloon). The property is located at 171 S. C Street,
Virginia City, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-073-28.

The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of
the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted, or
under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will be
compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses, or will
perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the surrounding land uses,
community, and neighborhood.

The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent
property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements,
public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general
welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the
implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any
other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to an
official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
growth and development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose no
undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by the
county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the county.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Virginia City
planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting this finding is
provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of
this Special Use Permit.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and Section 17.30, CR -
Commercial Residential Zone.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by statf and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Lance
Gilman, move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-036 to operate an outdoor establishment

7




promoting tourism and local activities. The establishment consists of a small movable stand that will
act as a table and be located within the front patio area of an existing commercial establishment
(Firehouse Grill, BBQ & Saloon). The property is located at 171 S. C Street, Virginia City, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-073-28, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2018-037 request to the front and side yard
setbacks for the construction of a detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of 20-feet (versus
the required 30-feet) and side yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is
located at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 003-101-05.

Ms. Canfield: This request was heard before the Planning Commission on October 4t for a variance
to construct a garage. The Planning Commission voted for approval 6 to 1. Applicant is present.

Public Comment:
Beth Smith, Applicant - Virginia City Highlands resident: She is available to answer any questions

regarding this request.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Sees that the request was approved by the Planning Commission but there
is no recommendation for approval by staff. Was there support by neighbors?

Ms. Canfield: When originally reviewing this, staff looked to see if there were other location options
for the garage. Apparently, with approval, the Planning Commission felt there were other elements
to be considered (regarding location). Moving the garage to another location would mean taking out
trees, making the garage more visible to the surrounding neighborhood - disturbing more of the area.
There was support by the neighbor that was at the meeting.

Chairman McBride: The one neighbor who opposed is a Commissioner on the Planning Board. The
Highlands is a very unique and challenging area for building based on the topography. I like to see
people improving their properties and appreciate that Ms. Smith wanted to save some of the trees.

Austin Osborne concurs with everything said. We (Planning) are just doing what we have to do with
the recommendation. If this is approved, we believe that this is not a bad project and that it will not
adversely impact the area.

Ms. Canfield read the findings of fact:
This approval is for a variance (Variance 2018-037) to the front and side yard setbacks for the

construction of a detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of 20-feet (versus the
required 30-feet) and side yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The property is
located at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s
Parcel Number (APN) 003-101-05.

The subject property is located within E-1 VCH Estates zoning with an existing residence as a
primary use and the proposed garage as an allowed accessory use.




That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,
topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance would
deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification.

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances, 17.40 E
Estates Zone and 17.12 General Provisions when all Conditions of Approval are met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and policies of
the 2016 Storey County Master Plan.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission, but against the
recommendation by staff, and with the findings of fact under Section 3.a of this report, and other
findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the
conditions of approval, I, Lance Gilman, move to approve Variance 2018-037 to the front and side
yard setbacks for the construction of a detached garage, to allow for a front yard setback of 20-feet
(versus the required 30-feet) and side yard setback of 8-feet (versus the required 15-feet). The
property is located at 1930 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-101-05, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner
Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2018-038 is a request by the applicant to
allow for an accessory dwelling unit on an existing developed residential property. The applicant
requests an accessory dwelling unit be approved within a previously constructed garage. The subject
property is located at 1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-123-07.

Ms. Canfield explained this request if for an accessory dwelling unit that was built by a previous
owner. The proposed unit meets all requirements for an accessory dwelling. Staff and the Planning
Commission recommend approval.

Public Comment:
None

Ms. Canfield read the findings of fact:




This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-038 to allow for an accessory dwelling unit on an
existing developed residential property. This approval allows for an accessory dwelling unit
within a previously constructed garage. The subject property is located at 1931 Lousetown
Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-

123-07.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Virginia City

Highlands Rural Residential community area in which the subject property is located. A

discussion supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of this
staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit. The
Special Use Permit complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, the zoning ordinance and any other plan, program, map or ordinance

adopted, or under consideration pursuant to the official notice by the county.

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will be

compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses, or will

perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the surrounding land uses,
community, and neighborhood.

The Special Use Permit will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent

property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements,
public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general
welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the
implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any

other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to an
official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
growth and development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose no
undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by the

county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the county.

The Special Use Permit, with the recommended conditions of approval, complies with the

requirements of Chapters 17.03.150 - Special Use Permit, 17.12.046 - Accessory Dwellings,

Location and Placement, and 17.40 Estate Zone.

Vice Chairman McGuffey asked, if the residents sell or move away, does this dwelling have to be

refurbished back to a garage or remove the bathroom? This has been done in the past.

Ms. Canfield: Under condition K, this Special Use Permit states that it belongs exclusively to Brian

and Amanda Burlison and the real property subject to the Permit, so long as one, or both owners,
and maintain the primary residence. The Special Use Permit is non-transferable. A new owner

would have to obtain a Special Use Permit to insure they are meeting the same requirements, or the

unit would have to be adjusted to no longer be a dwelling unit.

10

own




Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the findings
of fact under section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of
County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Lance Gilman, move to
approve Special Use Permit 2018-038, a request by the applicant to allow for an accessory dwelling
unit on an existing developed residential property. The applicant desires an accessory dwelling unit
within a previously approved garage, with a shop/ office being legally established with a Special Use
Permit. The subject property is located at 1931 Lousetown Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey
County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-123-07, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner Gilman, Seconded by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Outline tentative process to select the next County Manager.

County Manager Whitten explained that he hopes to retire in the forseeable future. A target date is
July 1, 2019. Mr. Whitten said it is incumbent on him and the Commission to select the best candidate
available. Mr. Whitten said he is not advocating a Nation-wide search and reviewed some steps he
believes should be taken. Specifics will be brought to the November 9th meeting for approval.

District Attorney Langer has advised Mr. Whitten of a process used by Carson City when selecting a
City Manager where two different interview Boards were used. One with City officials and the other
with citizens. Applicants are reduced by a screening process and through an interview process.

Mr. Whitten suggested using Linda Ritter, past City Manager in Carson City, and who has held many
other positions, to be in charge of the process of selection.

Active advertising, through various sources, would be done in November. The number of applicants
would be “screened down” in December. Review committees would be created, consisting of panels
of six. Mr. Whitten recommends at least one individual from the tourism sector in Virginia City and
one from the commercial/industrial sector at the industrial park be on the panel. Committee
interviews to be done at the end of the year. Note: this timeline is “soft” at this time, subject to
discussion.

The process would be turned over to Ms. Ritter, subject to Board approval. There could be one on
one interviews with the Board - if this is compliant with Open Meeting requirements, background
interviews, then a public board interview, and then Board selection, probably in February. The
process would move forward from there. This would be an independent, transparent process.

Commissioner Gilman left the meeting.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of business license second readings:

A. HERITAGE CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT - Contractor / 2351 Sunset Blvd ~
Rocklin, CA

B. UNITED HERITAGE FINANCIAL GROUP, INC - General/707 E. United Heritage Ct ~
Meridian, ID

C. AXINE USA INC - General / 108-2386 East Mall ~ Vancouver, Canada

D. LIBERTY INTERACTIVE CORP, dba: ZULILY - General / 2555 USA Pkwy ~ McCarran, NV

11




Mr. Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, recommended approval of items A. through D.

Public Comment:

None

Motion: Approve Items A. through D., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Mike Northan, Project Coordinator:

Slurry-sealing of streets will be finished this week.

Radar signs have been installed in town at each end of C Street.

Storm drain installations are on-going.

Public Works is preparing to start demolition of the Black & Howell building.

Stacy Gilbert, Senior Center Director:

The Senior Center is taking over the Veteran’s Day Spaghetti Feed this year. Monetary
donations and volunteers are being requested.

Pat Whitten, County Manager:

On behalf of Deny Dotson: The VCTC is holding a community workshop this Thursday at
Pipers - 6 PM to 8 PM, to discuss marketing and special events done by the VCTC. Survey
results have been posted on-line.
The County’s annual Christmas Party will be held December 7th at Pipers.
Thank you to Comptroller Hugh Gallagher and Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis for
their assistance on the pipeline project. The project is still “alive” but looks different. There
would be no Special Assessment District at all - relieving any liability the County would have.
The Tax Increment Area would be in and all of the “players” would pre-pay. Two are not
asking for repayment from the TIA, the others are. We are looking at approximately $28
million payback, much less than the $65 million. 50% of that payback would come from State
funds the County never sees - the other 50% from County funds. The County would be giving
up taxpayer dollars that it would not otherwise receive. There will be another Special Meeting
regarding this - tentatively October 29th.,
Working on a lease of County offices at the McCarren complex with NHP who is in need of an
office at that location.
On behalf of Mike Nevin:
1. October 314 a ceremony was held at the Divide to commemorate the completion of the
wastewater project and the kickoff of the water pipeline project. Special thanks to the
High School choir for singing the National Anthem, and to the Fire Department for
flying the flag on their aerial truck.
2. Ophir Grade road remains closed and out of bounds. Hunters and four-wheelers are
reminded to stay out of the area.

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

None




20. CORRESPONDENCE:
e Denial of agenda item request from Druscilla Thyssen.

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
None

22, ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 11:40 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,

o XAU0ga T rp bl
Vanessa Stephens Clérk-Treasurer

13




Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
VAV
Meetmg Date: Friday, November 09, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 5 min
Agenda: Consent Regular [ Public Hearing Required [
1. Title: Justice Court Quarterly Report
2. Recommended Motion: Approve
cH Prepared By: E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace
Department: Justice Court 775-847-0962
4, Staff Summary:
5. Supporting Materials: EOP Listings for July, August, September, 2018
6. Fiscal Impact: None
Funds Available; n/a Fund: O Comptroller [
7. Legal Review Required: District Attorney [
8. Reviewed By:
U] Department Head Department Name: Commissioners’ Office
L] County Manager [0 Other Agency Review
S. Board Action:
1 Approve I Approved with Modifications
OJ Denied [0 Continued

Agenda ltem No. 5 T




Virginia Township Justice Court ~

26 South B Street, Second Floor
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

.. .-.- ¢ ’I Wi 5o { .
PRGN TV CLERK
A1
October 16, 2018 BY.. %

QUARTERLY REPORT

Storey County, Nevada
775-847-0964 ™[

y -’siaf: 5-847-0915
www.storéypCounty.org

Pursuant to NRS 4.100, attached please find End of Period Listing Reports for July, August, and
September, 2018.

I, E.F. Herrington, Virginia Township Justice of the Peace, Storey County, Nevada, do hereby certify that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the attached information is a full, true and correct statement of

NRS 4.100. {//p( /!’X‘—"J

E.F. Herringtcul
Justice of the Peace

Subscribed and sworn before me

this _@ day of _(OoX ZOJ_E)_.

—f—

Justice Court Clerk




vxx 3T0dOU JO PUT exs

80ISE-000-0LT/SAWNIUD

6 007062 ¥/N ¥/N YETTIOJINCD HIVIS YATAIN 40 WILOIA d34 ONITId dNCd AT
|4 00" ¥ ¥/N ¥/N MHEAGSYIYL AINNOZ X3JFO0LS TOZFPE-000-0LTHEA SASNAD AT
T SLt¢ge ¥/N ¥/N dIYNSYHEL ALNAOD AFAOLS 70CPE-Q00-T100/SETA SWIVID TIVHS JT
90Z%E€-000-0LT/ (DOV)
Z 00°6¢T /K ¥ /N FUITTIOIILNOD HIVLS ¥AYAIN d34 I¥NO0D ALTYIDHAS ING 4T
LIZP€-000-0LT/ (ASINH)
66T 06°215'T ¥/N ¥/N FATTOAINOZ IJLVIS ¥YAYAIN Jd4 L9000 ALIVIDALS JT
0 SC°806 ¥/N Y/N FHINSYIIL XINNCD XFUO0LS PO0ZPE-00C-TO0/HOYYHAS SAYODHEY A1
19002 P20SE-000-L8T
L A A ¥/N ¥/N dOILSAr dIHSNMOL VYINIDYHIA / INACJOV SIASIAYIAS TYIELIII JT
60T5€-000-TO0ALNAOD
Z 00" ¢ /N Y¥/N YAEASYEIL ZLNACD XTIOLS OL SINHWAYdYIAQ AT
o] 00° 0% ¥/N ¥/N MAINSYIAGL HIVLS VAYAIN CIZYE-000-0LT /335 IOVIVYEVNW JT
149000
€eT 00- 0912 ¥/N ¥/N HDILSAL JIHSNMOL VINISYIA TTITSE-000-£48T/33d XIITIOVA I¥0OS 41
012 EE"FCZ'6T ¥/N Y/N YIENSYIEL XZINNOD AJEO0LS 60IGE-000~-TOO0/AINNOD - 3INIF AT
g0ZFE-Q000-0LT/334
T Q00°S6¢ /N Y¥/N HATTIOAINOD JIVIS VAYAIN HOKRETOIA DILSHWOA 4T
0 B8 3T ¥/N /N dIENSYHIIL AINAGD AHE0LS F0CPE-000-T00/SdTI R4OD 41
L¥L03 GCTISE-000-L8T/LNAODDY
LT COT VLY ¥/N ¥/N AOILSAL JIHSNMOL YINIODYIA LdN0D - s3FA TIAID A1
L 0g- LLe Y¥/N ¥ /N JIEAINSYAEL AINNOD XIIOLS FOCHPE-000-TC0/SHEId TIAID AT
70CF€-000-100/ALNDOD
[ CS " L8T /N /N HIINSYIEL ALNAOD REUOLS - Jd3 3DNISSAS0¥d gNog JdT
TOTSE-000-08T/SISATYNY
P51 00°£98 ¥/N ¥/N HFENSVIAEL XINNOD ATIO0LS MIAYIYW DILENGD - JEE ¥¥ 4T
PITGE-000-0LT/ (TVIINTD)
66T 00°£80°T ¥/N /N YAdTTIOIINOS JIVIS YAYAIN dL¥IS - 3434 ¥¥ 41
66T 00°8Ew /N ¥/N FIANSYIEL ZINACD XIACIS E0TSE-000-T00/HITINIAND — FHI YUY JT
14dN0o
66T 00°€£5°T ¥/N 7/ N d0ILSAr JIHSNMOL VINIDEIA PO0TISE-000-L8T/3ADILSNL ~ dFI VY AT
S0ZFE-000-0LT
902 00°Ls9'¢g /N Y/N YITIOIINOD IALVLIS VAVAIN {O0¥) HIVIS - 934 ¥Y¥ JT
sese) 3O 8po) snje3s Taquny
IsqunN 3JUNOWY PasSINgsTq Ioeyd 3o8yD suweN eeiead Junoooy
I8°09cC ‘8¢ 8T0¢ XINL WOI
Te3ol pesingstd
TS PT:9€:80 BTOC/TIE/LOD oL
LY FPET0-TT 8T0C/62/90 woxg
Z¥N0D FDILSAL dIHSNMOL ¥INIOMIA 0LTLAIND
:sbeg Teni1oy - BUTISTT poTIad O pug 12321 8102/T0/80 :931BQ



+xy 1T0dSY JO PUT x4

80TSE-000-0LT/SEWITED

] 00°CCcT ¥ /N ¥/N dIdTICYINOS ILYILIS YAYAIN 40 WILDOIA 434 DNITIJA aNog Jd1
4 00°2 ¥/N ¥/N YIANSYIIL XINAOD AFAMOILS TOZHE-00D-0LTEEA SASNAD JT
T SLTES ¥/N ¥/N MIINSYIIL AINNOD XTHOLS 70CPE-D06-T00 /8834 SWIVYID TIWWS JIT
90ZrE-C00-0LT/ {D0OY)
€ 00°69T Y/N ¥/N YATTOYINGD FLYLS VAVAIN Jdd 19000 RITYIDHAS INA 4T
LTCRE-000-04T/{USIK)
112 08'6L5'T /N ¥/N YITIOFINOD HALYILS YAVAEIN 334 I¥A0D ALIVIDA4S 4T
0 SL TLO'T /N /N YEINSYIYL ALNNOD AFWOLS P0ZPE€-000-T00/HDUYIAS SA¥ODIL AT
IYN0D P¥0G6E-000-L8T
4 00°PIE ¥/N /N IOILSNL JTHSNMOL WINISEIA / LNAODJDVY SESIAYES TYI¥II™d IT
60TSE-000-TOOALNADD
T 00°T ¥/N /N JIENSVYILL XINAOD ATHOIS Ol SINAWAVAHIAO JT
0 50°G¢ TSN €/N YIYASYEIL IIVLS YAYAIN CTC7€-006-0LT /39 ADVIUNYW AT
hitialele]
602 00°062°¢ ¥/N ¥ /N IOIL5NL dIHSNMOL VINIDMIA TITS€-000-20T/523 AIITIOVA 19000 4T
vee 00" TTIE LT /8 ¥/N YIINSYIEL AINAOCD X3WO0IS €0TSE-0CO-TO0/AINNOD - INIJ 3T
PIZPE-000-CLT
T 00952 ¥/N ¥/N dIATIOHLNOD FTLYLS YAYAIN (dEN) /YAYAIN A0 FI¥IS - ENTJ 4T
0 L°06 Y/N ¥ /N YEEASYIYL XINOOD XAHOLS v0CPE-000-200/S2TI Xd0D AT
T0TSE-000-100/94s
£ 007081 Y¥/N ¥/N dEI4NSYIHL AINOOD AHNOLS SISXTYNY TYOIWIHD 47T
200D GZTGE-000-L8T/INNODIY
8 GZ'9LP /N /N ADILSNC AIHSNMOL YINIOWIA IdQ00D - SEAL TIAID AT
T /00706 ¥/ ¥/N YIENSYIYL AINROD XFHOLS P0Z¥E-000-T08/SHTT TIAID JT
¥O0CPE-0D0-TOO/ALNNOD
3 06°CZTT /N ¥/N AEINSYIANL AINNOD XIFUOLS - E3d SNISSIIOWA ANOd AT
S¥ZrE-000-T00/223
T o0 062 TN Y¥/N WEYINSYIUL XINACS AFUOLS INAAHSYNANIFT XZIN¥OIIV A1
TOTSE€-000-0BT/SISXTIYNY
60T 00°ELS 7 /N /N WIINSYIYL XINNOD XIUOLS MENYYR DILIANTD - ITI ¥¥ JT
PTTISE-D00-0LT/ (TYEANAD)
€1e 00 6vT’T /N /N YITIOEINCD dIVLIS VWAVAZIN AIYLS - 993 ¥Y¥ J°T
212 00" 8G%H ¥ /N ¥/N MIAIASYIAL AZNAOD KA¥OLS E0TGE-000-T00/QTINIANL - FEI ¥Y IT
ha(alele]
iz 00°E09°T ¥/N ¥/N d2IISOL dIHSNMOL VINISYIA POTSE-00D-LBT/EADILISAL - ZES ¥V AT
90CFE-000-0LT
612 00°62%’8 /N ¥/N JITTIOUINOS IIWIS VAYAIN (DO¥) FIVYLS - 3FFI ¥Y AT
soseD 3o apoD snjels IsqumpN
IoqunN JFuUnoOWy PeSINgSTQ Io2¢YD o8y sweN ooieg Junocdoy
0S°F0L‘9€ 8I0C IS5N9AY¥ WOHA

Te30L pasangsta

TZ 0%:6F:60 8102/T1£/80 O

TS pT:%E780 8T0Z/TE/L) woIa

LE0D FDILSNL dIUSNMOL VINISHIA QL TLdLED
:ebea 2nloy - BUTISTT poTIsg FO pus 6£:TT 8IDZ/TE/80 :o2%



3 00 6ce /N
¥ SRV 4 /N
6eT 60" PSS‘1 /N
0 0" 185 /N
Z 06 0TT ¥/N
S g0-2¢ Z/N
0 50°0¢€ ¥/N
86T 00766172 ¥/N
81¢ 00792181 ¥/N
9T SL°G8Cv /N
L 087 Leh ¥/H
6 S§L°891 Z/8
B 00°8§ ¥/N
56T 00" 1LY ¥/N
02 0670217 ¥/N
A4 G0'8%7% ¥/N
r44 20°€LS’T /N
012 20°6S8T'8 /N
saseD) 3o 9poD sn3e3s

IPqUNN JuUnoWY pesIngsIq FEEL )

00°S6€°G¢

/8
¥/N

Y¥/N
/N

/N

Y/N
Y/N

¥/N
¥/N

T/N
/8

¥/N
Y/N
¥/N

¥/N
¥/N

JETIOELNOD FIVYLS YAYAUN
AIANSYILL ALNQOD ATEGLS

AETIOELNCD FIVLS YGYAEN
JTINSYIYL ALNAOS XFYE0LS
I¥00D

IOILSHL GIHSNMOL YINIODYWIA

AIIQSYIIL ALNNCO KEAQLS

dAEASYERL ALTIS YAYAEIN

L4000

HOILSOL STHSNMOL maszMHs
YHANSYIALL XLNACD ATF0L

HMDOU

JDILSAL JIHSNMOL VINIDYIA

VHEOSYESL ALNACD AZYUQLS

JAIEASYELL ALNNOD AFACLS
JIEGSYIAL ALNNOD RIMCLS
dHAOSYHEYL ALNACD AEAOLS
JATICHINCD EIYIS YAYAEN
EEOSYIAYL AINODCD AFYE0LS

hx-istele]

2O2ILISNS JTHSNMOL VINIDYUZIA

HATTOIINOD HALVYIS VAVAIN
SweN sokeg

sx¢ 2I0d5Y JO puxm

§0TGE-00C-CLT/SENINED

Z0 WILOIA B33 SNITIA UNOE AT
TOZPE-000-0LTEEA SASNEAD A1
LICYE-GOO-GLT/ (QASIW)

F3d IMN0D XITYIDEAS
70Z%E-000~-T00/30¥YES SAHODTA
¥70SE£-000-4L8T

/ LNQO2OY SIOIANIS TYIYIENd IT
60TSE-0C0-TOGALNADD

0L SINIKAYIEIAO IT
ZTIZYE€-000-0L1/32d ISYIUEYR &1

[
el

00 )

TITSE-000-L8T/23d ALITIOVA INDOD IT
60TSE-000-T00C/AINAGCD - ENIJ JT
SZTS€-000-L8T/INNODOY

I¥NC2 - SEEI TIAID A1
v0ZPe-000-100/8HEL TIAID 41

70Z¥€-006-T00/XINNOD
- Fdd DNISSIS0¥d dNOE nH
SyZPE-000-T00/3HE

INTATISELERITY AGNYOLIVY AT
TOTSE-000-08T/SISATYNY

IAIVW OILIANED - FId ¥YY &7
7ITGE-000-CLT/ (IVHENTD)

JLVIS - IEd ¥¥ I7
E0TSE-000-TQ0/ATINGANL — HEI ¥Y AT
7O0TSE-000-L8T/FDILSAL — AXA ¥Y I
80cPe-000-0L7
a

(30¥) AIYLIS - 335 Y¥

3JuUnooDoy

xxx

8T0C ¥YIIHIIJHES WOI

Te30L pasingsta

:aberg

65 6T 0EFT
12°09:57:60

BI0C/LZ/6C O%
810Z/T£/80 woag

IdNCO EOILSNL JIESNMOL YINIDYIA

T2nioy

- U,HH

1817 poTIsg

I0 puz

-
o~
7]
[
o
!
o
™~
~~
w
o
el
[

o
4+



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11-9-18 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) 1 move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next

Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: _ . _Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attomey
8. Reviewed by!
x__ Degartynent Héad Department Name:
—
Coun Other agency review: .

9. Board action:

(] Approved ] Approved with Modifications

(] Denied [1 Continued

Agenda ltem No. & :D:’_



Storey County Community Bebelopment

h
N

Busginess @ o) Licenging
P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 *mfield@storeycounty.org
To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 31, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the November 9, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:

OMBOLI INTERIORS INC - Contractor / 4200 Rewana Way ~ Reno, NV
ADKORE STAFFING GROUP LLC — General / 4200 W. 115" St ~ Legwood, KS
MICHAEL CLAY CORPORATION — Contractor / 410 E. Minor ~ Winnemucca, NV
PICKETT, KELM & ASSOCIATES - General / 4100 Duval Rd ~ Austin, TX
FISHER SAND & GRAVEL,dba:ARIZONA DRILL&B-Contractor/1302 W .Drivers Way~Tempe,AZ
DANNY WAYNEHAM, dba: SAWDUDE DESIGNS - General / 1130 Harmony ~ WMCA, NV
PROGRESS WIRELESS — Contractor / 2133 Donald Dr #3 ~ Moraga, CA
HOLDER CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3300 Riverwood Pkwy ~ Atlanta, GA
ATLAS COPCO RENTAL LLC — General / 2306 South Battleground Rd ~ La Port, TX
CHIKO AIRTEC CO., LTD — General / 2-27-24 Hakushima ~ Osaka, Japan
COLIN GORDON ASSOCIATES - General / 150 North Hill Dr ~ Brisbane, CA
ALPINE LOCK AND KEY, INC - General / 811 Ryland St ~ Reno, NV
. SOUTH STAR RISK CONSUTLING, LLC - General / 1059 Redfish St ~ Bayou Vista, TX
ENGINEERED TOOLING SYSTEMS — General / 2780 Courier NW ~ Grand Rapids, MI
WEIGL CONCRETE, LLC — Contractor / 3550 Barron Way ~ Reno, NV
PROSPECT PEAK LLC — Contractor / 177 Walnut Dr ~ Femley, NV
NEESER CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 455 US Hwy 395 N ~ Washoe Valley, NV
MTEX INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS GMBH — General / 7 Kirchstrafe ~ Roansburg, Germany
TYRES INTERNATIONAL INC — General / 4637 Allen Rd ~ Stow, OH
RYAN SESSIONS, dba: HANDYMAN SERVICE - Home Business /7770 Opal Bluff Dr ~ Reno, NV

HPRONOZEINASIEATEBEEAPR

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1.
2.

3.

Title: Fire Prevention Week

Recommended motion

Prepared by: Patty Blakely

Department: Community Development Telephone: 775-847-0966

. Staff summary: Fire Prevention Week: The purpose of Fire Prevention Week is to bring

awareness to the risk of death in case of a fire and provide educational resources to people
of all ages, in order to keep everyone safe. We would like to ask the Commissioners to
please adopt this proclamation for Fire Prevention Week 2018. Thank you.

. Supporting materials: See attached.

. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
. Legal review required:
District Attorney
. Reviewed by:
X Department Head Department Name: Community Development
County Manager Other agency review:
. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[] Approved [
| Continued

[1] Denied

e e

Agenda Item No. 55 T



STOREY COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
110 ToLL ROAD
P.0.Box 526
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440
OFFICE: (775) 847-0966 ® Fax: (775) 847-0935

STOREY COUNTY PROCLAMATION
IN SUPPORT OF
FIRE PREVENTION WEEK — OCTOBER 7-13, 2018

Whereas, Storey County is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those living in and
visiting our county; and

Whereas, house fires in the United States resulted in 2,735 civilian deaths, and fire departments
responded to 352,000 home fires in 2016 according to the National Fire Protection Association; and

Whereas, all Storey County residents are encouraged to create a map of their home, marking two exits
from each room and a path to a safe location from each exit; and

Whereas, home fire drills should be practiced twice a year, both during the day and at night, to allow
everyone to practice using different pre-designated exits; and

Whereas, home addresses should be clearly marked and easy for the fire department to find; and
Whereas, once you get out of a burning building, stay outside; and

Whereas, the National 2018 Fire Prevention Week theme, “Look. Listen. Learn. Be Aware — fire can
happen anywhere”, reminds all Storey County residents that personal steps must be taken to increase
our safety from fire;

Passed, Approved and Adopted this 16" day of October, 2018, by Marshal McBride, Storey County
Commissioner, Chairman.

Attest:
Marshal McBride, Chairman Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Commissioner, Chairman Storey County Clerk-Treasurer

“BUILDING THE FUTURE AND PRESERVING THE PAST”
Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

Title: For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $622,984.71 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $2,602,224.64.

Recommended motion: Approve claims as part of the Consent Agenda.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Trecasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Claims are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer
County Manager Other Agency Review:
. Board Action:
[ ] Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

ST



YIANSYIAL

FATTOALINOD

YINOISSINWNOD YEANOISSIWWOD NYWIIYHD

$SIBUOTSSTWWOD Jo pxeog Ajuno) Aszo03s syl Aq peaoxddy

90 L¥0’'9ST 1S)03Y) I0ojonpag IBIOL
00" 184133 107 IsISUBI], ISSN TBIOL
Junowy s9kea # paa # aa

/# dua  /3o8yd
8T/80/0T :®3eQ I22UD Io3onpseq :=2dAl TTOXARg

AYYNINITAAL I93s5Tbay ooud L¥:L%:80 8T/80/0T :unyg
< sbed WILSAS TTO¥AYd ALNNOD AXHIOLS ¥O0TS0¥d :3dey



AIUYNIWITIIA

t4

abeg

YTEOSTIIL

AITTOELANOD

HIANOISSIWNOD

YINOISSIWWOD

NYWNIIYHD

1SIBUOTSSTUWOD Jo pIeod Ajuno) Asxols aylz Ag pasoxddy

LLT9T9'TL

00°

Jjunowy

8T/80/0T :93Ba o8UuD

I193sTboy oouD
WALSAS TIO¥AVYd AINNOD ATAOLS

$S)09YD JI0730Mpad Te3ol

:8d14AE Z03 I3ISUBIL I3S TBIOL

a9ked # paa # aaq
/# dug  /3deud

Io30npaqg :adAl TToxAed

0Z:LS*B0 BT/80/0T :uny
Y0T1S0¥d :3dey



FTINSYIIL

JITTIOILANOD
AINOISSTIWWOD YINOISSINWNOD NYWAIVHD
isIdUOTSSTWWO) JO pieog Ajuno) Aaxo3s ay3z Ag paasoxddy
88°0ZE 'S6€E 1 pasIngstd
ZBLIZT € :1030Npad 03 ISISURII I38)
€6 TED ‘9T 19712 deg ITQ UO pIsiX spaa 224iorduzm
€L°906°20€ :31sodsqg 393aT1g @24AorTdug
8% 658 :syoay) sakordumg
9125281 1 S30ay) J03ompag
9L°250'%S :5d1dd XO0F I9ISUBIL I3SN
junowy 294Ard # PaQ
/% duz
6 8 L 9 § % £ ¢ T :sdnoap 1roxdea
8T/%T/0T :93BQ PUS-POTA34 8T/6T/0T :@3eQ 3O3YD zernbay :adAl Tr0xkeg
AJYNINITIID as3s1bay yoayp

S

abeg

WELSAS TTO¥AVd ALNNOD

1305

Te30L
Tesor
Te30L
Tejol
Te3oL

Te3ol

# aa
/323ud

T?:ST:0T 8T/LT/OT :uny
AZNOLS Y0TS0¥d :3day



Check Register Packet: APPKT00047-2018-10-26 Checks CW

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
101228 NEV ADMIN BLDG & GROUNDS 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 7,994.52 93620
101343 NEV DEPT HUMAN RESQURCES 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 2,174.17 93621
404357 NEVADA OCCUPATIONAL HLTH 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 115.00 93622
405365 Northern Nevada Concrete, Inc. 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 2,400.00 93623
404118 OPTUMINSIGHT INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 292.50 93624
404076 OVERHEAD FIRE PROTECTION 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 385.00 93625
403895 PETRINI, ANGELO D 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 220.50 93626
405256 PIPER'S OPERA HOUSE 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 6.00 93627
404990 RENAUD, PETE 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 60.07 93628
404909 RENO TYOGRAPHERS, INC 10/26/2018 Regular - 0.00 2,233.50 93629
405095 ROBERTS, BOBBI JEAN 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 300.05 93630
405222 ROWE & HALES, LLP 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 2,680.00 93631
200395 SAINT MARYS ARTCENTER INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 16.00 93632
101568 SANI-HUT COMPANY INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 330.00 93633
405081 SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 224.00 93634
404187 SHOAF, BRIAN ALLEN 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 7.50 93635
102462 SIERRA ENVIRONMENTAL 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 60.00 93636
102980 SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION LL 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 1,228.00 93637
101630 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 10,598.35 93638
403480 SLICK INDUSTRIES LLC DBA 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 365.00 93639
404871 STAR2STAR COMMUNICATIONS, 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 1,858.30 93640
405120 STEM LLC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 125.00 93641
403892 SUN PEAK ENTERPRISES 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 899.00 93642
404892 SUNBELT PUBLICATIONS, INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 425.74 93643
405244 SUTTON HAGUE LAW CORP 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 3,633.00 93644
405114 TAX MANAGEMENT ASSC INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 2,200.00 93645
405124 TERRY, SHIRLEY 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 960.00 93646
404845 THOMAS PETROLEUM LLC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 4,575.01 93647
404062 UNITED FINANCE INDUSTRIAL 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 570.09 93648
403728 UNITED SITE SERVICES OF N 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 143.63 93649
404486 USA CASH SERVICES MGT INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 414.61 93650
404828 V & T ROCK, INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 399.78 93651
403983 VCTC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 692.44 93652
403894 VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR CO 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 2,785.00 93653
405378 Virginia & Truckee RR CO Inc. 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 12,230.00 93654
403893 VIRGINIA CITY TOURS INC 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 124.00 93655
402820 WALKER & ASSOCIATES 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 2,247.00 93656
101890 WASHOE CO CORONER 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 1,149.30 93657
103080 WATERS SEPTIC TANK SV DBA 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 740.00 93658
404295 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 6,448.89 93659
101920 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 2,703.82 93660
405226 WILLAMAN, GABRIEL 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 26,940.00 93661

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 151 96 0.00 686,037.61
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

151 96 0.00 686,037.61



Vendor Number

Vendor Name

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

100135
101605
99652

404466
404467
404508
403040
403753
403834
404771
101040
103126
404088
102782
404969
102198
103241
101761
405366
102447
404295

10/25/2018 7:36:45 PM

ALSCO INC

BERRY ENTERPRISES
COMSTOCK CHRONICLE (VC)
DAIOHS USA INC

ECN INTR HOLDING CO INC
GRANSBERY, TOM

HENRY SCHEIN

HOT SPOT BROADBAND INC
IT1 SOURCE LLC

ITS MY COMMUNITY STORE

L N CURTIS & SONS

MEDICAL PRIORITY DISPATCH
METRO OFFICE SOLUTIONS IN
OFFICE DEPOT INC
RADCLIFFE PAINTING

RAY MORGAN COMPANY (MO)
SBC GLOBAL SERVICES IN LD
SHERMAN AND HOWARD LLC
Skyfiber Video, LLC

VIRGINIA CITY HIGHLANDS
WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD

Payment Type
Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks
Bank Drafts
EFT's

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Payment Date

10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018
10/26/2018

Payment Type

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Bank Draft

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment
Count Count
23 20

0 0

0 0

4 1

0 0

27 21

CHAIRMAN

COMMISSIONER

COMPTROLLER

TREASURER

Check Register

Packet: APPKT00044 - 2018-10-26 JM

Discount Amount

Discount Payment
0.00 208,223.67
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 2,012.87
0.00 0.00

0.00 210,236.54

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

COMMISSIONER

By Check Number

Payment Amount Number

161.01 93546 v~
2,145.00 93547 v~
140.25 93548 v~
109.90 93549
1,800.00 93550 1/
405.00 93551
894.45 935524/
8250 935531/
854.32 93554
12.75 93555 L
790.80 93556
610.00 93557.//’
302.25 93558:/
12.18 93559
12,500.00 93560 ~~
32.89 935611
55.87 93562 v~
168,283.00 93563
9,032.50 93564 1./
10.000.00_9356

2,012.87 DFT0000001

Page 1 of 2



Check Register

Packet: APPKT00049 - 2018-10-26 Direct Pay Barkdul-Spencer
cw

By Check Number

T

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405380 Barkdull-Spencer, Elaine 10/26/2018 Regular 0.00 10,659.84 93662
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 1 1 0.00 10,659.84
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00
1T 0.00  10,659.84
Approved hy the dcorey Counniy Board of Commisgionars;
ISHAEENAH COMMISSTONER COMMTSS{ONER

COMPTROLLER

TREASJRER

10/26/2018 3:32:42 PM Page 1 of 2



9% LI LSST 8T/ZT/0TE NOIS ¥04 dAIVM -DIDA H YLLAWAS
LE 6L LSST 81/2T/0T D¥A dOHS -dOHS QH VILEMAS
L6°0LT LSST 8T1/Z1/0T AS7I00L dOHS L4 JOE¥VH YILIMIS
86°9T LGST 8T1/2T/0T AYALIVE JYIAAVIE HALIW NOZVYWY AZNES
T6°9 8¥%ST 81/21/0T IOYLSOd €0/0T NOXIA'S
zZ0 168 Z9sT 81/Z1/0T ONINIVAL ANV¥NZI
EEFLE'T Z9sT 8T/2T/0TNI IDFTH ONINIVAIL QOOL anN¥NTH
8L°2S 8%ST 8T/2ZT/0TIVEN A4VYIS SHIA LATALS 62/60 SNINQVY A
Y6 €€ 8PST 8T/2T/01 SYILTIA ¥IV ZL IS T¢/60 SNINMAV¥ ¥
68°9T 8SST 8T/ZT/0T WIZINE ANOD TTVd MANNIQ €00 MO
LE"6E9’Z 85891 81/Z1/01T SYINNVYOS d0LASEd 10d3d EDIAA0
87 0% 85ST 8T/21/0T SEOTIANT 10d3a FDIAI0
%2'9LT £SST 81/Z1/0T 0CZ%9DdTIWY THLOH TWY 8T-TTJANOD ZLVLIS OJUN
09°0T 0SST 81/Z1/01 AOLVIANIONI - TANA 0SOS -VZOaNIW
-SLTL Z9ST 8T/ZT/0T XYL 1IadD avaEn
£L°596 zZ9ST 8T/21/0T ONINML Q004 avan
19°€T Z9ST 8T1/21/0T ALT TONVSINN avan
00°6€ 8%ST 8T/21/0T XO€ TO00L ONI TIVWS 92/60 HLIWS'W
66°9T 0ssT 81/2T/0T ATTIIAWD JOd XINTATA
96" 6€E 655T 8T/2T/0T TIYMTATL DA ¥000NS aX
SL 6S 6SST 8T/21/0T JATYd FDIJJAO0 Lod3d dADIJAAO ad
00°562 6SST 8T/ZT/0T NOILVAISIOFA ANOD AOO HSIANOL AN X
00°1TS2Z 6S8ST 81/21/0TD ¥OLISIA ¥Od S4ND NIL SSHTINIVYLIS SAANIT ax
LL"S6 69ST 81/21/0T SEINEIHDIT NOZVWY d3x
66°2T SS6ST 8T/21/0T gAY TTAM 1ED AWIAE NOZVWY 40
0L "8TT LSST 8T/2T/0T 540D ¥IIVd -HD INVINYLSHAIM HIIHL
06" % LSST 8T/2T/01 X0€g I1FTLOO -ZTLLS dH Hd4d0
LLTTE LSST 8T/21/0T INIVd AVdadS -ddvd dH HAJZL
00 0SC LSST 8T/2T1/0T ¥/1 SHOLVHANID 0dD MNOSYD
00°052 LGST 81/21/0T /1 SYOLVHEANID 0dD MNOSY[L
00°0S2Z LSST 81/Z1/0T /1 SAOLVIANTD 0dD MNOSY[
86°6%2 LSST 81/21/01 v/ SAOLVIINTD 0dD  MNOSYL
Z6 61 8%ST 81/Z1/0T HSYM MONAL $0/0T ZITE4S O
€6°69 8%ST BT/ZL/0T HADSHA YOI SAADAVYHD T0/0T NIAIN O
56°582 8%ST 81/2T/0T ¥HEIAYAV IAWIZH LHDITA 92/60 HONOTINDOW [
ZI LT 89%ST 8T/21/0T FOYLS0d §2/60 IYONOT L
09°02% 85T 8T/21/0T1 WAOAINN 12/60 dYONOTI'L
9€°19¢€ LGST 8T/21/0T  XDOLS MONAUL FAGWNTd aH A¥I
96°22C LSST 8T/2T/01T YNTID AO00TA DRE dH A¥I
9€°1Z% 1951 81/21/0T SANOHAAVAH TTOTBLO " “# ANI
-L6°S2T Z9sT 8T/ZT/0T  WOO¥ DHD JAQ IIQHTUD QYEN/aTAId
S6°LSE 6SST 81/21/0T FSNOHLNO DA ONILINAVH €4
66781 6SST 8T/ZT/0T SAV¥A £ - SIIVY TIWVD ONILINAVW €
PL VT €SST 8T/CT/0T £6260d€0d NIWAY ¥ADS  SAIVD SNH ONIQAYIDF
L1°8 0SST 8T/ZT/0T SHEIA IATULS -SHLIRKS 0SDS - ‘1 ‘INZSOa
$Z° 952 06ST 8T/2ZT/0T SHELIA LITILS -0D1S0D 0SDS - "1 ‘NES0a
0Z €8T°T 06ST 8T/ZT1/0T aood ZILVWNI -OONIM 080S - 1 ‘NESsod
69°8T 6SST 8T/ZT/0T  NALLIHM I¥d SNILIAW ISNOH ONILSYOR ad
00221 Z9ST 8T/ZT/0TININIWIL ¥0d SMO0H HAOD SIIIND
62791 LYST 8T/ZT/0T9T/0T ¥Od STIVOIAILIED ILOAIATDIIAIO -NIAIN'D
007002 8GST 8T/21/0THSUNENITY SIJATD HITLAA Sd00TYD VHD.LOH
00" 8¥%Y% z9st 81/21/01 MOHS FuId ONINAL ATANYTE
00 €V 2981 8T/21/0T LENOVL JEINIM dAIALZY
LY €6 §GST 8T/2T/0TVIIALTY QIYOH 1LOWd/1T00d NHTEINON OW
96°5Z SSST 8T/2T/0TYIILTY QIVOH IO¥d/T00d 1N0S TIA FIYO OV
INAWAYd QIVD TYIDIAIWWOD INO STTam LPT
TYLOL LINNOWY #SNTIL HIYA NOILAI¥DSHA # EDIOANI IdFA-ANOJ AOANTA MTEWAN
aavo od
FIILSTIDIEY QUYD ASYHIUNG 8T/IT1/0T : @3ed E.&..
abeg AINNOD XHUOLS

LS0B?YSEA :ON 3xodoy’



4

L8008 LT

LB 008 LT

TELOL

abeg

-¥6 €S
S8’ zL
00" ?T
00'0T

=St L
98’12
267 9T

LNOOWY

HIV¥a

YINOISSTIWWOD

NOILVZTIOHLAV ONY MAIATY A0 INAWIOTHTMONADY

#SNVAL

8T/2ZT/0TOTIVE FALNISEY FOVISOA
8T/ZT/0THD ¥MIEIA LANATINI IXLVY
8T/2ZT/0TL 1S LANNIINI 1S I3IV
8T/2T/0TS M1 1SQ IANEEINI I¥LIV
81/2T/0T ONINIVAL TIDXE XITIA
81/21/01 ¥AAav1 L3 9T
8T/2T/0TIA ¥HEIA LANNIINI I3IV
8T/2T/0T INIWAINDE SOIHAWID ¥4
81/21/01 SYTINI¥A AT WOD
8T/2T/0T EAIW AYOOLAV ASAAOLAY
B8T/ZT/0TSAEDUYHO ANV ASYD aV¥dI
8T/ZT/0TINIAT MDEHSYId SHTLVAE
8T/ZT/0TALYAILOV LON QIVD LAID
8T/21/0TISSY AEN X9 ISUNEWIHTY
BT/2T/0T HIA T ¥O4 SILVId -AWA

81/21/01 dEAL HSYMIYD
8T/Zt/01 hgatce: o)
8T1/ZT/01 ALT EDINVSINN
8T/2T/0T WITANT ANOD TIVd

TI¥A NOILAIIDSHA

YALSIDIE @IVD ASVHDUNG
ALNNOD XHIOLS

xTel0L PIBD#

NIAEN d 81/22/6
00FHT8BPTL
DZJLZONEMANLIZS

ZEWE EONEMANHLEZS
LTI%6%

ELLYEST

00%%090€0€

ZTE02ZET

69680261

ANIZ60%981

BE¥¥ZO

LENAVH JOOHHADYI €M
I4IO FYILTY LIVWTYM
LATO HNILIY IAVHTYM
0S0S- IDAIYEMOUL
N¥HL Jd90S

SENIVLS

SANAYLS

NOTIVd HOAOd QILNVIS

# EDIOANI 14IQ-ANNA

JOaANIA

8T/TT/0T
1s08%58d

YAEWAN
od
a3eq uny ,’
ON uuo&w&w



T

abed

[ChA-{ad
0070009
0070009
00°000°9
Te3loLn Junowuy
EEELR)

AIN¥OLLY IDIVULSIA

NOILVZIYOHLAVY ANV MIATATN A0 INIWIDAITMONIOV

0EST 8T/Z1/01

#Iayonon o3eq

8T/ZT/0T S}¥08UD OTUOIIDATH I0J I93STHdY
AINNOD AHMOLS

SH34d LSIAHHOT

TB30L S}D3Yyd

0T DS 8T ANI

01T dN0¥D YFILI04 LE
2D TOAUT J0pusp IaqunN
fo8uD

8T/TIT/0T : 23eQ UNY
HDO0B8ETHd :ON 3I0dsy



"ONI SNOILONAOdAd SNINOH T0%¢€6

00°SL8 9 00°SLB’9 2e298 8T/¢T/0T ddns WYdD0dd VALAYNO ANZ
(1dWOD) SINIODHY 40 Q¥V0H 00ve6
00" LET'¥C 00" LET'E T8€98 81/21/0T HOLVW INVdD
00°000°1T2 9€£€£98 8T/Z1/0T NOILVDOTHd NOILVIS HSVYH
SHSTYAUIINT AMATL 66EE6
00°€S 00°S¥% 75e98 BT/TT/0T
00°8 vSe98 BT/ZT/0T 81/%/0T - 81/t2/6
HYN0€3d ‘¥EANIE B6EEE
08°0%2°T 08°0%2'T TLE98 8T/2T/0T SHTVYS LAMNDIL %09
ONI ‘SESIYJYEINE SNWYHS LBEES
0S°L80°T 0g¢-gece 08€98 8T/2T/0T INIANIVIEEING AQHNOD
00°S7% 08€£98 8T1/21/0T YOEVT dNLdS Xdd
05" LTS 0Be98 81/21/0T SdITddNS 3 HONVNALINIYW
00°00€ 08¢€98 8T/2T/0T ALTHMODES IHDIN
SEWYL ‘NVHE 96¢€¢€6
007891 00891 80%98 81/21/0T a3
ONI 'ESI¥JYEINE NOXY S6EE6
T0°LY T0 L% 86€£98 81/21/0T SHOIA¥AS FDNAAIINODITHL
IA¥AS HDNIYIANODITIL LILY veece
SLTE6EV'FT SLT6EVVT 68¢98 81/Z1/01 YINIVILEY dHH0LO0
QLT ‘SYINLIVd WAINIOAY E6EEE
sz ect SZ°€Ce 6E€£98 8T/Z1/01
ONI ONIHSITHNd YIAYDIY (4332
T6°61S c6"6C¢E T1€E98 8T/TT/0T TYOISAHd M ‘SNOWIS
667681 TT£98 BT/ZT/0T TYDISAHd HANd
SSANTTIM ANV HITVIH D¥Y T6EES
98°6T¢ 057 9% Sezos 8T1/21/0T HD
£T728 S€298 8T/2T/0T dOHS
£1°09T SeC98 81/21/0T dOHS
¢S 0T 00g9g 8T/21/0T AMANNYT #L IS
857 0¢C 00£98 8T/21/0T A¥ANNYT SL IS
ONI OOST¥ 06eE6
00°959% 00°90% L8€98 8T/2T/0T SNOIS/LENIYW INI¥d XAd
00'ose L8€98 8T1/21/0T SYFLS0d ATINOD AOEMOD
ONI SNDIS dNIdTY 68EE6
cs g6l 257261 vecos 81/21/0T ATIVEL 3 JLIIONOD
SLNIY dYLS TIV 88€€E6
00-¢cco’s 00°000°8 B9Z98 81/21/0T LOPd dWI ¥ALYMILSYM
OTT MD0LSWOD TTY LBEE6
0S°L6T 'Y 0S°L6T'¥® L6298 8T/T1/0T TII¥d avNd JdEWH 8102
3 ONINIVYELI 3¥Id4 ¥VdTID TI¢ 98EE6
CELET LL" LT 96£98 8T/ZT/0T SHITAANS gV
S5°60T 96€£98 8T/zT/0T SHAITAdNS GWY
ONI NON SVDIIY SBEEG
BE V%V ’9 00°09T 88298 8T/2T/0T J1F ‘JIDETHES A¥NL ‘YOHIW
00°%TS 88298 8T/2T/0T SI4IHDEY ‘NOILDHETIOD
00°"BTT'T 88298 8T/21/0T SNOILAWHEXHE "dOodd SJdd
00°00T 88298 8T/2T/0T SESNADIT SNE ‘LIWNEd
00°0oz 88298 81/21/0T LINIWITIOY LI0ddNS ATHLNOW
00°%¥T0°2 88298 8T/TT/01 SIASSY JEXI4 ‘lLEdand
00°0s 88298 8T/2T/0T SESNEDIT
gc-88z'ec 0gg9s8 8T/21/01 SHOIAYAS FTIVMLAOS WHI
ONI SWHLSAS YIVA TIDNVAAY ¥BEE6
007691 007691 $8298 81/21/0T LYISOWNJEIHL ISHN ILASHA
d HINIEd ‘NMOYL £8¢ce6
TYILOL LNNOWY H#SNVIL ALYa # 0/a NOILJI¥DSHd HOIOANI FOANHA YIIWAN
MOEHD ADEHD
8T/2T/0T ¥ALSIDAY MADHHD 8T/TT/0T * @3eq uny

T abed ALNNOD XITHVOLS STetdd :oN 3xodsy



z

007008

82°20€'Z

00°9TZ L

8 S¥S

¥y IL9'C

00°sec
00°0T
€2°856°¢€
¥s'06cC
0c-zoz
00°CteT

sz eTL'TT

8T 6L9

8L TS

05°00T
00°5L
og"zs

057625

00°09
00°009°T

TY.LOL
MDAHD

abed

00"9ctT
009zt
007921
007008
00°09¢’T
00°80C
00" %8
9L"S9T
9L"S9T
00°E9T
9L"S9T
00°T¥%0 ‘LT
00°SLT
£¥ 9%
6€£°66C
89°SLL
09°5s¢
9T 0%5'T
00°5¢2
00°0T
€2°8596°€
v5° 062
00 coc
00°0ET
szrezL'te
v9 8¥%s
7S 0ET
8Z°1
0S°0S
0S700T
00°SL
0E" ¢S
057208
00" Le
00709
00°009°T
LNOOWY

STESS
c6z98
[434°0
£8E98
8€£298
8ECI8B
8€298
£6298
£6C98
£6298
£6298

L2298
60%98

¥1€98
P1E98

LEZ98
L€T98
LETS8
ZvEss
65298
9ET98
TvE98
69298
qee98
LT%98

1698
£9€98

S6298
c1€98

0Le98
£6€98
99€£98

SSE98
55e98

62E98
0vE98

H#SNVAL

8T1/2T/0T
8T1/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/Z1/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T1/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T

8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T

81/2T1/0T
8T/2T/0T

81/21/0T
8T/21/0T
81/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/ZT/0T
81/21/0T
81/21/0T
81/21/0T
81/21/0T
8T/Z1/0T

8T/2T/01
8T/2T/0T

8T/21/01
81/21/01

8T/ZT/0T
8T/21/0T
BT/ZT/0T

8T/2T/0T
BT/ZT/0T

81/2T/0T
81/21/01

COR-{e

# 0/d

AL dDIJ40 sSnd

J00A 8T/1€/ZT-8T/10/0T
W3 8T/TE€/2T-8T/10/0T
SYOLOVY/SYTITINNTOA NIVEL
¥YIL NO ONIYVIH NO

LSSY NIWAVY av

YOA0 SNOIIOIJIOD
SDNIQVEY dNOOJHES 40 HDILON
SONIQVdId dNODHS 40 IDILON
SONIAVHIY dNODHS 40 ADILON
SONIAVHdY JNCDOHS 40 dDILON
LI0ddNS WY¥¥D0dd 8T0Z 12O
JI8INESTA INAWHSINEVO
JaSdANESTAd INAWHSINIYO
SHIIL $0999Md

SHYIL Z12T90S

SHIIL 0066905

LY0d¥IV LY SHANHOOUL

SHEA 100D 9N¥d 0D AZ¥OLS

INIVIW TUYNDIS AMI4 ¥SN

LI04ddNS AON

YNOL JHSYIM ¥HAATA NOSIVD
SZETESUABDEDAYYDLC

¥dS HSVEL 10ddd ALVD LSYd
YALYM NIQIVD TOOMMO0T
YAIYM E0S dOOMIDO0T

Md -dS0H NIJYEVYD

IDIA¥ES TOYLNOD 1s53d

SAEY -0ddd SOLT

8T/¥/01-81/12/6

NOIIWVELSINIWAY DITdNd

NOILAI¥OSHO HOIOANI

B8T/ZT/0T ¥ILSIDIE MDIHD

ALNNOD AHIOLS

ONI AL ALINOQWWOD XDOLSWOD

OUNAAY JYM TIAID MDOLSWOD

(DA) HTIDINOYHD MDOLSWOD

ONI LSHHD ALINAWWOD

AEN 40 EDIA¥ES NOILDHATIOO

ONI H¥IL OWO

VOCALNC TANNVHD ¥VATD
YIENSYILL NOSHYD J0 ALID
NOS¥YYD 40 ALID

ATddNS AYYILINVYS TVIINID
ONI dTTISVYO

NYAYESNODHNS ¥HALYM NOSHUYD

ONI ¥ITSA¥YHD HDAOA NOSAYD

00 NOILVLIINVYS TYLIAVYD

NINIACIANWI TYHINAD NOANYD
TYIALSNANT YINJAOAITYD
avo

HAVS ¥ SSYID ‘MD0T M 3 D

SIMIT LIODS ‘TIHIANE

a TIISSNY ‘NOINWIE

AOANHA

8I/TT/0T
STETEd

TZveEe

0C¥E6

6T¥E6

8T¥€6

LT¥E6

9T¥%E6
ST¥c6
PT¥t6
ET¥E6
[As A3
TIvE6
0TvE6

607E6

80veE6

LO¥%EE
90%E6
S0¥€E6

v0¥%E6

£0%E6

c0¥%¢ce

ATHENON

ADHHD
: 93eg uny
:ON 3zo0dsy



dId I¥L £E€VE6

ZT E0E‘LT 00°STE LBZ98 81/21/071 TZHISYL DIIJAS HO
zg9roL8‘e 06298 8T/2T/01 ANITINO DYV avD AOD
00°588°T 06298 8T/21/01 08Z°TLZ SEN ANITHAIA J4F
0s-zegz’'zt 06298 8T1/21/0T 08Z'TLZ S¥N ANITHAId AJIH
ONIYHINIONT LSEM JIVA TEVEE
6T 619 96°LS LvZ98 8T/21/0T JEES SSYED
L3099 LvZ98 81/21/0T HWIEANS J¥NL -DA
BEZ' 0T LbZ98 8T/2T/0T 1dd NOILYDI¥AI -Mdv¥d M1
BZ 0T Lvyz9e 8T/21/01 I¥vd NOILWDINNI -DA
SL1ONQO¥d NOILVOI¥EI ONIME TEVES
Z¥ 666°T 98°%¥8€’T 9LZ98 81/21/01 ALNOOD
95 %19 9L298 8T/2T/0T opatcAs
T0S TYOIQEN IDAdSUANI 0EVEE
SE06T'C $0° TS 9%298 BT/ZT/0T TYES TYIAYY $29ar
957607 9%Z98 81/21/0T ID006-T€ THA €SSEHAL
¥Z 0€ 9vZ98 BT/ZT/0T NYITO HMVd" 8SZHSLI
0% ST 9vZ98 8T/TT/0T ¥ALTIA ¥4IV -JdIT170d
LZ 6% 9%Z98 8T/2T/0T SHI¥ELIVE -dOHS
80°9%S 9%298 8T/21/0T 1D006-T€ TAd -SAYOA
00°6€ET 9%Z98 8T/2T/0T INVIEDIIIHS Z€999d4
26 0L 9%Z298 81/21/0T FEOT YVED €6LLSMA
T0"%E 9%298 8T/21/0T MALTIA FENT €6LLSMA
T0°%2T 97298 81/21/0T DdS9 TAA ZTEISOS
z0°8ve 9%Z298 8T/21/0T Dd S§9 TEA TT959¥L
55 %8¢ 9%298 gt/zt/0t SENH THM JI¥EA SZT0990S
¥E€° 91 9%298 81/Z1/01 SYALTIIL -$0999Md
LT TT 97298 8T1/21/01 SYALIIA FHEAT -AZA WOD
¥9° 8T 9%298 81/21/0T NVI TEINd MOTIIA 0009905
05" 1% 9%298 81/2T/0T YIS TYIavd 294l
60°5C 9%Z98 81/2T/0T d¥d TANd 000990S
T0°%¢ 9%298 8T/2T/0T MHLTIA HENT €6LLSMI
05 T¥% 9%298 8T/2T/0T YIS TVIAYd-vysar
ONI ATddNS OINY LLOITIH 6ZHE6
S6°6TT §6°6TT ZBE9B 8T/21/0T SIITdANS INIAF
T AQNYD ‘NYONNQ 8Z¥%E6
00°8EE’T 00°8€€’T LTEYB 8T/21/0T NOILINOWWY
ONI SHSI¥d¥AINA AZTO0A LZYES
0S°0T%’9 05'0T% ‘9 81998 8T/ZT/0T INAWAYd aNZ - dX ONZ
ONI ‘IENAAA 9Z¥E6
0156 0T'S6 LZE9S 8T/2T/0T STYOEA IDAVE
OTT ENIN FDONAA STYEE
00°9¢€ 00°9¢ 0T%98 8T/2T/0T
DT SASTAGAAINA XINNEQ YZYES
SP 6SE s8-z8 9TE9R 8T/21/0T EDIAYAS YALYM TIVL
S6°s¢T S0%98 8T1/21/0T TYINTY JILYM
06°1S ¥%298 8T/2T/0T TYINZY ¥ATO0D HD
S6°St 8z€98 8T/2T/0T '
S6°0€ 80£98 81/21/0T1 ¥ALYM SL IS
56°9¢ 80€98 8T/2T/0T AAIYM ¥L LS
S6°0¢€ 80€98 8T/2T/0T ¥IIYM TL IS
S6° €L 80€98 81/2T/0T ¥AIVM 2ZL 1S
ONI ¥SN SHOIVA €ZVE6
00°025°€E 00706 95€£98 81/21/0T 8T/%/0T - 8T/12/6
00°0€%°€ £E¥€£98 8T/2T/0T
DTT TIIW dTOD MDOLSWOD 44253
00°8LE
TYIOL INNOWY #SNYEL HI¥A # 0/d NOILdI¥OSHEA HDIOANI JOANIA ATEWAN
ADHHD ADIHD
8T/2ZT/0T WALSIDIA ADIHD 8T/TIT/0T : 93BQ UNy

£ abed AINOOD XHAOLS STETEd :ON 3x0day



14

85 ¥SL'E

oL c8
00" €ES¥

60°T6C

00°00¢c

05°222°'6

T1 €T

0S°80Z°0¢€

08°8ES'T

88 ¥TL'T

ZL'ZVO'T

057259

0Z°66S"'T

6€£°029

0§ TIBO'ET

LY 8E9'T
ov 122’1
6L L¥L
TYLOL
MDHEHD

sbed

00°005
€2 88T
ET"LTE
0E"0ST
Z6°860°€E
oL'z8
00" €S
€€°0S
FE'0S
0L"8ST
ZL'TE
007002
00°06T
05°2€0‘6
IT°€C
05202
00°9
00°000°0€
08°8ES'T
PPTLSE'T
PHCLSE’T
00" 0%
90°0LE
99°Z€9
00°06%
05°202
6€ T6E'T
18°L0T
05°S6T
6€E°6LT
05 08
00°'S9T
05°596°S
00°9T1'¢L
LY 8€9°T
097" 1I2Z'T
ZT°TSS
L9 96T
INNOWY

8ccos
v0E98
70E98
v0e98
v0€98
L0E98
S¥%Z98
S6€£98
S6€98
§6£98
S6€£98
Sve98

98e98
£0E98

zseos
LSe98
LSESR
0€zos
66£98

15298
15298

¥8€£98
¥8€£98
coess

v1v98
7Iv98

67298
6%298

0s29g
05298
05298
05298

£%298
£€€98

£LE98
8%298

8L298
BLZ98

#SNTIL

81/21/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/ZT/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
81/21/0T
8T/2T/0T
81/21/0T
8T/ZT/01
8T1/2T/0T

81/21/0T
81/2T/0T

8T/2T/0T
81/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T

81/21/01
8T/TT/0T

8T/21/01
8T/21/0T
8T/ZT/0T

81/2Z1/0T
8T/Z1/0T

81/21/0T
8T/2T/0T
81/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/2T/01
8T/21/0T

8T/2T/01
81/21/0T

81/21/01
81/21/0T

81/2T/0T
8T/ZT/0T

HLVa

WIDTIIO HITVAH 8T0Z IDO
ANVLS JOLDELQUd

NEHIDS ¥OLDALONd

VIANVYD FONVTIIAAANS
FAVIHAN SANIMIYTIOS
SHITIANS HDIJA0

SHXYI ALYEA0¥d NO IWA¥IAO
Z/1 TTOSNOD NIE UH¥HS
Z/T TOSNOD NIF THIHS
NOIINALEA+Z/T NIg QHIHS
z/1 AI0SNOD NIH TENHS
0SX¥

LOdHEOOI® HDIA¥YES LENVHINI
OVYWS HOVTIdEA/LOOHSITENOAL

TIVISNI JTEVIWNVILS -2SDA
81/%/0T - 8T/12/6

ddns WYIdo¥d JALIVND ANZ
JdOVTIE LETOT

Savod
Savod

SHILITIIN
LNTY d¥3d aINOd
AAMOL AV¥ad dNOd

S¥$ X S¥H 0T
S¥$ X S¥H S°¥

NOLINS ® € 'TIIN%g
n¥dd soLT

SdWYT SV¥D
LIM LNO4D0T
SAWY'T SVO
d¥0S WY0Jd

LO-8T# HSVYD AHOS
B8T-2-0T XOVTd UDLETIOT

ISNOH VdAd0 SHAAId
FdId / ITOHNYH

dII- NJId SOLT
S/M- N¥Ad SOLT

NOILAI¥DSHA HDIOANI

8T/ZT/0T ¥ALSIDAY MADHHD

ALNNOD AJIOLS

OddW NVYNNATOW O SHWYC

OTT ID¥N0S TLI
HY0LS ALINAWWOD AW SLIT

NOYVYHS ‘NIA¥I

NI IOW OJANI NIVINNOW NO¥I

' HIEZEVZITE ‘NOLONIINNH

ONI AdNVHav0odd I1LOdS IOH

ADIA¥ES LIAEYD LOdAd JWOH

CHOS (Q¥YM HLIANOA DIAOLSIH

ONI ‘SEIVIDOSSY + SHAVH

ar1 ‘IVH

OTT SINIWLSHANI 41D

WOL ‘AJIESNYID

0D NOILONALSNOD IIINYAD

YIONITID

‘Y Q¥¥MJE ‘HNIAAYID
dT SYDTTANIHL

ONI SHESIYAYHLNT NOSNOAHAL

HOANHAA

8T/TT/0T
STETEd

TSsvE6

0svte
6¥vE6

8¥VE6

LY?EE

ER 244

Sy¥E6

14447

£vvee

(47442

%veE6

0¥vte

6£7E6

BEPEG

LEYES

9EVEE
SEvEe

142433

ATHWAN

ADEHD
¢ 93eq uny
:oN 3xodeay



S

T2 6ET
SLTEEB

0S ¥%9°0LY

TZ LSL'E
86°TT
00°008°T

TeE " 9¢Cy

LS SBE’T
L9°999°1

0S°"%E¥

SL €00’
9% €8€ VT
00°00§°2

66°€CT

00°009
00°00L

09°558‘8

£€C°9

00°0S%
00" Ct6
00°00¢
TYILOL
MDHAHO

abeg

TZ 6tT
SLEEB
2T STT’'8SY
8T TLY'T
00°%SS°T
00"o0zT'T
00°s¢z
00°6ST"8
TZ LSL'E
86°TT
00°008°T
65 CL

¢z 19
¢6°S¥
PEPIT
verzs

LS SBE'T
L97999'1
00°96¢
05°8¢

SL €00’V
9% €8€ ¥1
007005’z
00" ¥
66°6TT
00" 009
00"coL
00°00¥%°2
09°€£89
00°zZeL'T
00°2e¥
00°80L°¢€
£C" 9

00" 0S¥
00°Zte
LNNOWY

89¢98 8T/21/0T

€Z€98 81/2T/0T SANNO¥DAIVE /SINIAIITONT A
19298 8T/2T/0T
z29298 8T/2T/0T
6T%98 8T/2T/0T
61798 81/21/0T
6T%98 8T/21/0T
61798 8T1/2T/0T

Sd34 NOILVINdOd
AQ/AJOD I¥ED YHQYODHH IW

0TESS 8T/2T/0T LSHEL MOT4d ¥dIS

T0%98 8T/2ZT/0T WY0d TTId

BEEIB 8T/21/0T NIWNAY ¥dDS IWLS 8107 Ldd§
86298 BT/2ZT/0T
T1%98 8T/2T/0T
99298 8T/2T/0T ¥AIYd
992798 8T/2T/0T VANILSIOW
8T€98 8T/2T/0T SYASYEH ¥ SHAINA €SN

SHITddNS EDIJJ0

60£98 8T/2T/0T SHITAANS EWY
62298 8T/2T/0T IJOddNS WVIDOVd B8T0Z IDO

8SE98 8T/2T/0T
BSE98 8T/2T1/0T 8T/%/0T - 81/12/6

v9¢98 8T/T1/0T
oveE98 8T/21/0T ASNIAXET 0IA0T
£EEC98 8T/ZT/0T ddns WYIDOoNd ¥ILIYVND ANZ

cTv98 8T1/2T/0T
ZTv98 8T/ZT1/0T

v0%98 8T/2T/0T INANNIVLITLNA
90%98 81/21/0T

90¢€98 81/21/01 SSENJIVH AdOod T1INd
90¢€98 81/2T/0T OvVE FJ0¥ /IIYMAUYH OSHY
90¢€98 8T/21/01 SINVd HSN¥E
90¢e98 8T/21/01 SdITddns dnNY
90€98 8T/2T/01 UEANIEVEVYO AD0T-0L0Y

£S2Z98 BT/ZT/0T aNNJTY LIS0dEa

Zee98 8T/2T/0T JAOVTHE ¥OLETIST
¥8298 81/21/0T V72 SHLVED T
#SNVEL 2ILYAa # 0O/d NOILAT¥DSHO dDIOANI

8T/2T/0T YILSIDAY MDHHD
AINNOD XAHAOLS

NvEANd HLIVAH 40 AIQ AEN
NOIIVXVL Id3d AIN

ALIAVS DITHNd IdHd AHIN

HITTOALANOD AIN
1D)dS ADNIEDYEWH TYdIDINNW
dNTYA ENYL ASNOH dNAOW

L LIFF0Y ‘STIYIOW

NI SNOILATOS ADIAAO OULEW
NIHHOS XA¥NITH

ALD ALINNWWOD NIVML MIYHW

NOISNYW AVADUYN
JETTOILINOD 0D NOAT
D711 SINIAZ ZNTE AIndIT

T ON 0D INIONH ALJHIEIT

SYTOHDIN ‘ONIVYZZV'T
AL AOAVWOMW JIVHOIY ‘HINAVTI

YAVAAN A0 HIVLIS

SNOS ® SII¥ND N 1T
NTIVA ‘IMSHAIIA
NOSINIA VIOVT ‘LHOINA
ONI SESI¥dYIINT NISNAL
JOANIA

8T/TIT/01
STETEd

LY E6
TL¥E6

oLvee

697¢€6
897E6
L9%E6

99%¢€e6

$97t6
v9vee

£97¢6

c9v¢E6
19%¢€6
097%E6

697€6

8S¥E6
LS¥E6

95%¢€6

SSYE6
¥SveEe
£ESP¢E6
(45433
AIGHON
MOHHD

°3ed UNA
10N Jjxoday



9

Y¥ Z80°1T

L6°06T°T

00°8%

057581
SST6TT

goroog’zt

vZ'LE

08°LS6

0% "¥%LE
09°1T%Z
9g'6¢
cLreee

007 00c

0S°2¥6'%C
00°0¢€
00°%6L"9
00°0LB'E
0s°0%0‘T
TYLOL
ADEHD

sbeg

00°SL
SB'6LT
00° 5L
SB'6LT
00°SL
00°S0T
96918
8% 191
L6 06T T
00°9
00°2%
05°S8T
SS6TT
00°SLL'S
00°525'9
S8° %1

6E 22
08769
SZ°ES
¥9°6
66°9T

92 %91
98791

v0 8¢

96 €95
00°g¢
0% " %LE
09°'1T%2
9€°6¢

cL CEE
00°00T
00°00T
0S°2¥%6'¥e
00°0¢
00°¥%6L"9
00°0LB'E
00-ase
05°06L
LNOOWY

9LE98
9LES8
oLESR
9LESS
9LE98
0ze98
v6298
LPE98
96298

09¢e98
09te98

6SE98B
vLe98

vee9g
¥€€98

96€£98
96¢£98

§5¢98
55298
$5298
S5T98
55298
§5298
SSZ98
S5298
55298
SL298
68298
69¢€98
09¢z9s

20¥98
20v98

00%98
61%98
£€9298
L6E98

¥5298
vS5298

#SNTIL

81/21/0T
8T/2T/0T1
8T/2T/0T
81/2T/0T
8T1/21/0T
8T/21/0T
81/21/0T
8T/2T/0T
81/21/0T

81/2T/0T
8T1/Z1/01

8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T

8T/2T/0T
8T1/2T/0T

8T/2T/C1
8T/Z1/01

8T/2T/0T
8T/ZT/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
81/21/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/ZT/0T
8T/ZT/0T
B8T/2T/0T

Br/et/ot
gr/et/o0t

8T/21/0T
8T/ZT/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T

81/2T1/01
8T/ZT/0T

HILVd

OdTd ONINIVYL
ONI¥OLINOW dJIA SL IS
¥a ANV A4I¥HHS

H¥Id FESAOH LInod
ASA0HLANOD

TYINIY INIHOVW dOVLSOd
SdITddNS INIHOVIW

JANI gH¥

LNIWAYE HSVHAT

81/%v/01 - 81/12/6

8T/¥/0T - 8I/12/6
NOILDHASNI dOLVATTI

dTAT ¥OEETST 8T-2-0T
HTAT ¥OELETST BI-6T1-6

aNgx00d
SHITAdNS JDIAA0 DSIW

WNIIL AJALLYE -dINOFH
IYIM AYVIWI¥d -899¥%LDH
oNT1d ¥YIV -dOHS

UEAVW ¥SO 899vLDdH
SLHDIHM THHHM -0OS
TEEHM J¥IM -dOHS
JEAVIIE LINDYUID 899%LDH
STOOL -dOHS

WOOT FYUIM 899%LDH

1S TIIW/NDIS d01LS IH
LNINdOTIAZA WWOD
IDIA¥ES MVS NIVHD
qILOITIOD SEFA

TYILAOd XTHINOW 5S40
TY¥IY0d XATHINOW SAd

1Ddr0dd DS T6# NNVE ONOH

SHOIAYES 1DILOdd dTIHD
Hdd WIVYIO ONINIW AFJOLS

0¥20000AN dLM AHIOLS
0%Z0000AN DITdNd ATIOLS

NOILAT¥OSHO dADIOANI

8T/2T/0T ¥YHISIDIY MDHHD

ALNNOD AHAOLS

ONI SEDIAEA NOILDILOUL

ONI SEMOH AINLId

(VY1) TVE0TD SEMO"E AENLIA

ISN0H YIHd0 S.¥HJId
d OTEONVY ‘INIVLEG

ANYdWOD JOLVAATHE SILO

NYOr ‘ENJOHS0

ONI 1LOddAd IDIJAJ0

SHSTY4YELNG OLNY ATTIIHY.O

OTT DONILTASNOD NOLJON
ONI VYIN¥OAITVD A0 THLXAN
ONI 'SIDNAO¥d YIMOd VAVAEN

ONI HJIA¥AS TYDHT VAYAAN

(ONY) alT 3NTE YAYAIN
YAVAEN J0 FIVLS

YAYAEN 0 AIVIS
SHDINOSTE NVWNH AZN

STVIANIN 40 AIQ AEN

JOaANdA

8T/TIT/0T
STETEd

06vE6

68¥%¢6

88V E6

L8%E6
9BV EE

S8¥vE6

v8¥ve6

£8%¢g6

¢g¥te
8%¢6
08%e6
6L7E6

BLYEE

LLYE6
9LV E6
SLYE6
PLVES

ELYCE

YTTNON
JADHHD

23pq uny

:ON 3xodsy



L

00°S0T

09°2Z%T’9

05°0T

00°%22

82°986

Zs”

00°800°ST

00°%8T
£8 €62

007009

00°¢€LE
C9'BLY
T¢ %%C
L6'TC

0c-o8e

0S"TLT'T

00°000°9

00°006'T
§58°S8
89°681°2

0L"608

TYLIOL
ADHHD

abeg

S8 ¥EeT
9z €¢

00°50T
0Z°%EB
0% LO6
007 T0% "%
0S°0T

00°CTT
00°CTT

£%° 168
S8 ¥6

cs”

00°000°ST

00" %8T
£EB E6C

00°00s
007001

00 €LE
Z9°'8LY
T %%2
L6'TC

00°0%T
00°0%T

0S"TLT'T
00°000°2
00°000°€
00°00¢S
00°00¢
00°006°T
S5° S8
89°68T'C
00°sL
00°sL
00°gL

LNNOWY

26€£98
26€98

vLzco8
£L298
€L298
€L298
z9¢98

Zzeos
cCE9R

6€EZ98
6€£298

9T%98

1€298
T9¢£98

96€£98
12e98

6T€E98
LEE98

TLZ98
0Bz98
Lo%9R
s0€98

66298
66298

9geoB
0vcos
0%Z98
0¥%29s8
0%298
6298
95298
L9298
9L€98
9L€98
9L€98

#SNWAL .

81/21/0T
8§1/21/01

81/21/01
8T/ZT/0T
8T1/2T/0T
81/21/01
81/21/01

8T/2T/0T
BT/ZT/0T

8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T

8T/2T/0T

81/2T/0T
8T/21/01

8T/Z1/01
8T/21/0T

8T/21/0T
8T/21/0T

81/21/0T
81/2Z1/0T
81/21/0T
BT/21/0T

81/21/01
8T/21/01

8T/2T/0T
81/2T/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/2T/0T
81/2T/01
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/ZT/0T
8T/E1/0T
81/ZT/0T

[CHA-{e

dd ONIJIS HLYDISYA 059%
av0y NVHANIT 0%T

170D Tv¥odad

dIMM® OIQV¥ FOVTIdTA
FONASNYAL/XAYILILVE HOVIdEY
6T/TE/L-LT/T/8 ¥Wd
81/%/0T - B81/12/6

ATIN HILVWNI
ATIN HLVANI

JILNOY
YIINAD ¥S

440 dTILdWD IONV.ISIA ONOT

ddNs WY¥DH0dd ¥AILIYNO dNZ
81/%/0T1 - 81/12/6

SAITAdNS dWY
qIs¥NGSId LNIWHSINATYO

HAIVILSOd
Z¥B86EBSY LODY HAVASHA

LINIVIW IO0 N¥3Ed SOLT
1DHr0¥d dLSYM TIIAANYT
0L6T99

YHLNI¥d NONVD JOOMIDOT

TYINHY WOOULSHY
TYINFY WOOULSHYE

08 "A ¥SdOS

ddW 20S ‘HOVHIINO aF €nd
HOVEILNO ‘OIMW YIQENW
YIQHAW ' 'TId €nd ‘OIMW-ZSH
DLW ‘THY 9nd

£€699T09T

LNHWNOITIY -006690S

L ‘¥0I¥dv

TL IS

YOINAS MT

YOINIS On

NOILAI¥DSHEA IDIOANI

8T/2ZT/0T WHLSIDEA ADIHD

ALNQOD AHIOLS

0D ¥IMO4 DIAIDVd WHUHIS

TYININNOITIANT VIIEIS

SWHISAS TOYLNOD WVANHIS

NATIV NVYId€E ’‘dYOHS

ONI SYOLONEIFLSIA MAVWAIHS

ONI SHOIA¥ES TYHOTD DHES

a1 NI SHOIA¥AS IYHOTID DES

ONI ¥HLNHII¥Y SAYVW INIVS
ONI 0244ny

NVIL I€H0€ ‘SI¥EE0d

LNNODOVY HAYHASHA

NI ONIJVDSONVT NIIYD ONIA
ONI ‘ESnJay

NI‘€¥T XADOTODIXOL aOOMadTd

(¥D) ONI 0D NVDIOW AVd

D11 HOV¥dS dIdvd

QLT HLNOS ¥ SANVA

ONI SHEIDILVALS avy
dIMOd FSYHDANG
0D ¥IFFANY ¥ JIIL TTEDING

INAWIEILEY ATdWE DITdNd

dOaNdA

8T/TT/0T
STETEd

TISE6

0TSE6

60S€E6

805€E6

LOSE6

90s€6

S05¢e6

v0ste
€0S€E6

c0s¢ge

T0S€6
005€6
667E6
:1:34%)

LeVES

96%¢ce6

SevE6

143243
£6%E6
(4343

T6¥%E6

VHEWAN

ADIHD
¢83pg uny
toN 3xoday



8

00°1I89

00°00S’2

00°008’S

66°S¥E'C

TL 6€8°¢€

Ty EICT’EE
95°962°089
88°2S7%
08°069°1T

00°0ST

00°ss
08°2¥ve

TYIOL
MOEHD

sbea

-00°8¢€2

LETTO9S

Ty EeIZ’EE
957962089
88°CS¥
08°059'T

00°CET
00°0¢

00°ss
69° VL

LNOOWY

£9€98
£9€98
£E9€£98

$9¢298

CLESS
cLE98
ZLES8

[4x4°]
zLesse
cLZ98
ZLcss
cLzoB
cLC98
cLzos

05e98
LLZ98
LLZ98
LLZ98
LLZ98
L1798
LLT98
LLZ98
LLz9B
LLZ98
LLeos
LLgos
SLESS
LLTI98
LLT98
LLT98
LLT98
LLz98
LLZo8
LLZ98
05€98
LLZS8

92298
L5298
L9E98
6vE£98

£0798
veos

8%¢£98
£8298

HSNVIL

8T/Z21/0T
BT/ZT/0T
BT/2ZT/0T

8T/21/0T

81/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/2T/0T

81/21/01
81/21/01
81/Z1/01T
81/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/ZT/0T

8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/21/0T
8T/2T/01
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/ZT/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
81/2T/0T
81/21/0T
8T/21/0T

8T/21/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T/2T/0T
8T1/21/0T

81/21/0T
81/21/0T

8I/21/0T1
81/2Z1/0T

4Ivda

AD LSYT NO dIvd aNnazd
8T/%/01 - 81/12/6

asvdaT

AJIALSAN JIMINW 0€/0T
8T/6T/0T - 0Z/60 ¥OWD I¥L
8T/0T/60 - 6T/60 HMIA I¥UL
8T/6T/0T- 81/02/6 HASNOH-D

8T/61/01 - 8T/02/60 TINWC
61/0T- 0Z/60 €/Z ZId OS
dInda TL FAIA
ININIINOE FTATI

WHLSAS dI¥d

LS NOINN

g S 0T

SAVE TLT

ddns Wvdd0dd JILAYNO ANZ
TQEATIDHY XVI ALIIAOUd

1¥0ddNs JAHWILAIS

LNH LNO¥d NDIS FWOOTIM
2LVId

8 LINO AMMd ¥Sn %09

NOILAI¥DSIA 3DIOANI

8T/ZT/01T ¥ALSIDIN MIIHD

ALNONOD AHIOLS

ILIT ® DNILYOTY IANIHSNNS

SHSTIAIALNAE A¥dd NAS

H550d dddL ALNNOD AHTJOLS

OTT WALS

*SNOILVDINNWWOD ¥VISZUVYLS

WIALSAS JALYM 0D 1S

(DA) YHINED AYOINFS OO IS
IDIMISIA TOOHOS 0D 1S
ONI SEDIAYES ALITILA €4S

S 3 INIM SYIZVYID N¥IHINOS

VYHA DOTT SAIJLSNANI ADITIS

ONI TOdILNOD IS3Ed YIdIIS

FOANIA

8T/TT/01
STETEd

£25¢€6

(4413

1Zst6

0Zsee

6TSE6

815¢€6

LTSE6

9TSE6

SISE6

vIStE6

£ETS¢e6

crsce

UIEWON
ADHHD

S1pJ uny
tON 3xoday



HYT TYINIWNOIIANT NIILSTM £¥see

00" %9% 00°%9% 85298  81/ZI/0T ST6°9LT S¥N ONILSHL ¥NA
YQYAIN ‘AINNOD HOHSYM Zvsee
00°0L%’T 00°0L%°T ¥¥€98  BI/ZL/0T
SHININTA ALID YINIDAIA 1%5€6
00°05€’T 00°0SE’T sg£98  B8T/ZT/0T 9z2'SZ 6T 8T 2T IT 'S’ €/8
DNI S¥NOL ALID VINIDNIA 0%SE6
00" TE6 LE 00°0€z‘2T 88€98  BTI/ZT/0T 0£/6 3 62/6 SNIVHL
00°0€z’'eT 88€98  8T/Z1/0T €2/6 3 2T/6 SNIVAL
00°00T €1%98  8T/ZT/0T 8T/%/0T - 81/12/6
00°TLL T €1%98  8T/ZT/0T
00°009°TT 88£98  8T/21/0T L/0T % 9/0T SNIVEL
0D ¥¥ FEMDONUL 3 VINIONIA 6£5€6
00°002 007002 zS€98  81/2T/0T
ALIDOTIA OHAIA 8ESEE
9z ZLY 9z ZLY 9z€98  BI/ZT/OT QESUNAESIA INAWHSINIYD
DNI IOW SHDIAMAS HSVYD ¥sSn LESEE
00°9 00°9 69€98  81/21/0T AEM XOH€ 0d
(DA)  EDIAAOLSOA SN 9£S€6
007002 007002 6Lz98  8T1/21/0T
(DA)  FDIAIOLSOd Sn S£5€6
T9°9€T T9°9€T 15698  8T1/2T/0T AAVAVd A¥A JOLY'T
N 40 SEDIAWHS HIIS AELIND YESEE
LT° LSS LT' LSS Sze9s  BI/ZT/OT QESUNESIA INTWHS INIYD
TYIMISNANI EONYNTJ QELINA ££5E6
89 9%T 89°9%T 6T¥98  81/21/0T TIYDS
ANIIN ZESEE
T%°095'TY 007529 ST%98  8T/2T/0T IONVISISSY NOILONQO¥d
£87969'9 ST¥98  81/TI/0T INWONW ZIISNO 8T/T€-LZ/8
00°SLE'Y ST¥98  81/2T/0T NOISYAANOD STYIDNYNIJL-ONI
00°806°8T STv98  8T/2T/0T “INIVW 6T/0€/6 -8T/T/0T
BS 0€E’9 ST¥98  BI/2ZT/0T INWONW ZIISNO 8T/12Z-9T/L
00'o0se ST%98  BT/2ZT/0T INWONW TONIA 81/22-02/9
00" SLE'Y ST¥98  BT/ZT/OT NOISWHAANOD STYIDNYNIA
ONI ‘SHIDOTONHIEL ¥ITAL TE5€6
S6°6% G667 szz98  81/Z1/0T ¥ATO0D WALYM TOOMAIOT
SAS WALVM SMOQYINW HEMDAHL 0€SE6
08°SL 08°SL ¥6£98  8T1/21/0T Qood TITVA ALNNOD a¥nd
A0¥ ‘NESWOHL 625€6
ZS TEE L 9€°816°¢C 0Lz98  8T/zT/0T LEY TSA / 09% 93U -Md
LL TI8 0Lz98  8T/ZT/0T 85z 1SA / € DIY-HOA
6€°T00'% 0Lz98  8T/ZT/0T 00€ TSA/ O¥TT DHU-ACHS
7T WNETONLEd SYWOHL BZSEG
00" %9L 0c-08 vZE98  BT/ZT/0T VIAY EMVINI SIHOHIT XId
00" %89 8L£98  8T/2T/0T DY WWOD ¥IVdTd
AWNTLYWATHL LZ5€6
00°2S¥ 00°Z€ G59£98  8T/ZT/0T
00°02% S9€98  8T/ZT/0T 8T/%/0T - 81/12/6
D71 SAQEMOD ENOLSEWOL HHL 925€6
00°8%2'T 00°2T ¥9£98  8T/ZT/0T
00°9€2'T ¥9£98  8T/ZT/0T BT/%/0T - 81/12/6
AZTIIHS ‘AWNEL szsee
09°880°2C 09°880°2 LLE9B  BT/ZT/OT TAYMAAVE /M S¥OOAd TYLIEW
21T ‘M ® AS vZ5€6
00°0ST‘T 00°s2Z T€€98  8T/21/0T MILETIT MOVTE
00°526 T€€98  8T/2T/0T MILETOT MOVIE
TY.I0L INOOWY #SNVAL aIYa # 0/d NOIIATIIDSAA HITOANI HOANHA MEEAHAN |
ADIHD MOEHD
8T/ZT/0T MELSIDEM MDEHD 8T/TT/0T : 93ed uny

obeg ALNNOD AZYOLS STE€TEd :ON 3z0day



0T

8L 6BV TLY'T

v9°0€E9

g8°¢c

00°S0T'T

IYLOL
ADHHD

abeg

TYLOL SADHHD

S0°LS
00°sct
65°8%C

88°2¢
007998
00°0§
00°06T

LINNOWY

6L£98 8T/Z1/0T SHNALSOD XHd
6LE98 8T/21T/0T SANNLSOD Xdd
6LE9R 8T/ZT/0T SHNNLSOD Xdd

18298 81/21/0T DI¥NI N¥YAd SOLT

z8Z298 81/21/0T SYVH ‘WHLL
z8z98 8T/21/0T1 1-0¥d ‘IT0D-1
28298 81/21/0T ITOD-L ‘L-Ovd
H#SNVHL HI¥A # 0/d NOIILAI¥DSEA HIIOANI

81/21/0T ¥WHALSIDAY MDITHD
AINNOD AFAOLS

NYIL ¥I3VD ‘NOSTIM

00 AT74dNS VAVAEIN NJITLSHM

FOANHA

8T/TT/0T
STETEd

S¥se6

v¥5€6

HIFHAN

MDHHD
S3pa uny
oN 3jxoday

[



AINOISSINWOD

81/21/0T HIVA MDHHD 8L 687 TLI T TYLOL SMDIHD

NOILVZTIYOHLAVY dNV MEIAEN A0 INIWIDAITMONMDY



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 5-10 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1.

Title: Canvass of the General Election results held in and for Storey County, Nevada on
November 6, 2018.

Recommended motion: Approve canvass as submitted.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: A copy of the canvass will be provided following the election.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on Bill No. 109, the first reading of Ordinance No. 18-298,
an ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction, to adopt the
2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 International Wildland-Urban Interface Code, and the 2018
Northern Nevada Amendments to the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, amending
section 15.04.080 Fire District requirements, and providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the first reading of Bill No. 109, Ordinance No. 18-
298.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Gary Hames, Community Development Director

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

The Board on October 16, 2018, approved an Ordinance no. 18-293 adopting most of the 2018
editions of the International Code and the amendments to the codes. The amendments to the 2018
International Wildland-Urban Interface Code were still being worked on by the participating
jurisdictions and these amendments were not made available to be included in the recent ordinance.
The date of 2018 was not included on two of the codes in that ordinance. This ordinance includes
updating to the 2018 International Fire Code and the 2018 International Wildland-Urban Interface
Code and includes adopting the recently completed 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the 2018
International Wildland-Urban Interface Code. Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinance.

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 18-298 and 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
International Wildland-Urban Interface Code.

6. Fiscal impact: No change on the fiscal impact on local government.
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Community Development
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
e —t

Agenda Item No. q



Bill No. 109

Ordinance No. 18- 298

Summary

An ordinance amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction to adopt the 2018
International Fire Code, the 2018 Wildland-Urban Interface Code, and the 2018 Northern
Nevada Amendments to the 2018 International Wildland-Urban Interface Code and amending
section 15.04.080 Fire District requirements.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction, to
adopt the 2018 International Fire Code, the 2018 Wildland-Urban Interface Code, and the
2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the 2018 International Wildland Urban Interface
Code, amending section 15.04.080 Fire district requirements, and providing for other
properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
Section I: Chapter 15.04 is amended as follows:

15.04.010 Adoption of International and Uniform codes.

In order to regulate all matters relating to the construction, maintenance and safety of
buildings structures and property within the county, the board, pursuant to NRS 244.3675 and
NRS 278.580, adopts the following codes to be in force:

A. The 2018 International Building Code (IBC)

B. The 2018 International Residential Code (IRC)

C. The 2018 International Existing Building Code (IEBC)

D. The 2018 International Energy Conservation Code (IECC)

E. The 2018 International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC)

F. The 2018 International Mechanical Code (IMC)

G. The 2017 National Electric Code (NEC)

H. The 2018 Uniform Mechanical Code (UMC)

I. The 2018 Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC)

J. The 2018 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code (ISPSC)

K. The 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments published by Northern Nevada Chapter of the

International Code Council
L. The 2012 8 International Fire Code (IFC)

Draft 11-1-18



M. The 2012 8 International Wildland Urban Interface Code (IWUI), with the exception of
Section 602 Residential Fire Sprinkler requirements.

N. The 2017 National Fire Protection Association Standards (NFPA)

O. The 2018 Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments

P. The 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the 2018 International Wildland Fire-Urban

Interface Code.

Where conflicts occur between the codes and amendments referenced above and this chapter
if this chapter is more restrictive, this chapter will apply. (Ord. No. 14-255, § II, 5-19-
2014; Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.080 Fire district requirements.

A. The following amendments in addition to the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the
2018 International Fire Code and the 2018 Northern Nevada Amendments to the 2018
International Wildland-Urban Interface Code apply to the 2018 International Fire Code and the
2018 International Wildland-Urban Interface Code:

B. All sections of the 2018 International Fire Code and the 208 International Wildland
Urban Interface Code adopted in section 15.04.010 that refer to a board of appeals, including
IFC109, are amended and all appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by the fire
marshal must follow the process in SCC 15.04.090.

C. Section 603.2.1.1 Adjacent land and Section 604.5 Non-combustible area of the 2018
Northern Nevada Amendments to the 2018 International Wildland-Urban Interface Code are

deleted:

(Ord. No. 14-255, § 11, 5-19-2014; Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

Proposed on ,2018.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2018.

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Draft 11-1-18



Nays: Commissioners

Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on ,2018

Draft 11-1-18



2018 NORTHERN NEVADA AMENDMENTS TO THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL INTERNTIONAL WILDLAND-
URBAN INTERFACE CODE

July 18, 2018

Published by the Authorities Having Jurisdiction listed below

Participating Agencies

Carson City Fire Department East Fork Fire Protection District

777 South Stewart Street 1694 County Road

Carson City, NV 89701 Minden, NV 89423

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District Smith Valley Fire Protection District

866 Oriole Way 1 Hardie Lane

Incline Village, NV 89451 Smith, NV 89430

Sparks Fire Department Storey County Community Development
1605 Victorian Avenue P.O. Box 526

Sparks, NV 89431 Virginia City, NV 89440

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
193 Elks Point Road 1001 East Ninth Street, Building D, Second Floor
Zephyr Cove, NV 89448 Reno, NV 89520

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Preface

This document comprises proposed amendments to the 2018 Edition of the International Wildland-
Urban Interface Code as published by the International Code Council, Inc, amended by the Participating
Agencies listed above, with the support of the Northern Nevada Chapter of the International Code
Council. This document is hereafter referenced as the 2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface
Code Amendment and is prepared to be adopted by reference by the local authority having jurisdiction.
These provisions are not considered to be or enacted as the code unless the provisions are adopted and
codified by the local Authority Having Jurisdiction.

The purpose of the document is to provide a consist area-wide application to the enforcement of the
fire and life safety code sections noted in the International Wildland-Urban Interface Code, while still
acknowledging necessary modifications to the nationally recognized fire and life safety document based
upon the local needs of the community.

Notes: Deleted language in the base code has bee stricken-threugh:
Added language to the code section has been underlined.

The entire section amended has been shown for context.

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



The following participating agencies have reviewed the attached document referenced as the 2018
Northern Nevada Fire Code Amendments and agree with the amendments to the 2018 International Fire
Code as stated therein. It is noted that the code amendments must be approved and adopted and

codified by the local Authority Having Jurisdiction to become code.

Dave Ruben

Carson City Fire Department

Mark Regan

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District

Robert King

Sparks Fire Department

Steve Eisele

East Fork Fire Protection District

Eric Guevin

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District

Robert Loveberg

Smith Valley Fire Protection District

Martin Azevedo

Storey County Community Development

Lisa Beaver

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Section
101.2
105.3
106.1
106.2
302.3
402.2.2
404.1
404.5
501.2
5021
Table 503.1
504.2
504.7.1
504.10.1
505.2
505.10.1
603.2.1.1
603.2.2
604.4
604.4.1
604.5
607.1
B101.1
B101.2
B102
B102.1

B102.2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Scope

Alternative materials, design, and methods
General

Limitations of Authority
Review of wildland-urban interface areas
Water supply

General

Adequate water supply
Objective

General

Ignition-Resistant Construction
Roof covering

Underfloor areas

Vent locations

Roof covering

Vent locations

Adjacent land

Trees

Trees

Chimney clearance
Non-combustible area

General

Scope

Plan content

Defensible Space Plans
General

Plan content

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments

Page

10
10
11
11
11
12
12
12
12
13
13
13
13

13



2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments

Section 101.2 Scope
Section 101.2 is amended to read:

101.2 Scope. The provisions of this code the Wildland Urban Interface Code shall apply to the
construction, alteration, movement, repair, maintenance and use of any building, structure or premises
and to the management of fuels on undeveloped lots and on unmodified portions of large lots within
the wildland-urban interface areas in this jurisdiction.

Buildings or conditions in existence at the time of the adoption of this code are allowed to have their use
or occupancy continued, if such condition, use or occupancy was legal at the time of the adoption of this
code, provided such continued use does not constitute a distinct danger to life or property.

Buildings or structures moved into or within the jurisdiction shall comply with the provisions of this code
for new buildings or structures.

Section 105.3 Alternative materials, design, and methods
Section 105.3 is amended to read:

105.3 Alternative materials, design, and methods. The provisions of this code are not intended to
prevent the installation of any material or to prohibit any design or method not specifically prescribed
by this code, provided that any such alternative has been approved. An alternative material, design or
method shall be approved where the-building-official-in-concurrence-with the fire chief finds that the
proposed design is satisfactory and complies with the intent of the provisions of this code, and that the
material, method or work offered is, for the purpose intended, not less than the equivalent of that
prescribed in this code in quality, strength, effectiveness, fire resistance, durability and safety.

Section 106.1 General

Section 106.1 is amended to read:

106.1 General. To determine the suitability of alternative materials and methods and to provide for
reasonable interpretations of the provisions of this code see International Fire Code section 108 as
adopted by the Authority Having Jurisdiction, there-shall-be-and-hereby-is-created-a-board-of-appeals

- AT atal e fatalala a¥a HEHRELO-PaSSHHE AR

= = = -

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Section 106.2 Limitations of Authority

Section 106.2 is deleted:

Section 302.3 Review of wildland-urban interface areas.
Section 302.3 is amended to read:

302.3 Review of wildland-urban interface areas. The code official shall reevaluate and recommend
modification to the wildland-urban interface areas in accordance with Section 302.1 en-a-3-year-basis-oF

more-frequently-as-deemed-necessary-by-thelegislative-body.as deemed necessary by the code official.

Section 402.2.2 Water supply
Section 402.2.2 is amended to read:

Section 402.2.2 Water Supply. Individual structures hereinafter constructed or relocated into or within
wildland-urban interface areas shall be provided with a conforming water supply in accordance with
Section 404,

Exceptions:

1. Structures constructed to meet the requirements for the class of ignition-resistant construction
specified in Table 503.1 for a nonconforming water supply.

2. Buildings containing only private garages, carports, sheds and agricultural buildings with a floor
area od not more than 600 square feet (56 m?).

3. Agricultural buildings constructed for the storage limited to harvested commodities, without
electrical or fuel gas services.

Section 404.1 General
Section 404.1 is amended to read:

404.1 General. Where provided in order to qualify as a conforming water supply for the purpose of
Table 503.1 or as required for new subdivisions in accordance with Section 402.1.2, an approved water
source shall have an adequate water supply for the use of the fire protection service to protect buildings

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



and structures from exterior fire sources or to suppress structure fires within the wildland-urban
interface area of the jurisdiction in accordance with this section.

Exception: Buildings containing only private garages, carports, sheds and agricultural buildings with a
floor area of not more than 600 square feet (56 m?), and agricultural buildings constructed for the
storage of harvested crops or agricultural commodities without electrical or fuel gas services.

Section 404.5 Adequate water supply

Section 404.5 is amended to read:

404.5 Adequate water supply. Adequate water supply shall be determined for purposes of initial attack
and flame front control as follows:

1. One- and two-family dwellings. The required water supply for one-and two-family dwellings having a
fire flow calculation area that does not exceed 3.600 square feet (334 m?) shall be 1,000 gallons per
minute (63.1 L/s) for a minimum duration of 30 minutes. The required fire flow supply for one- and two-
family dwellings having a flow calculation area in excess of 3,600 square feet (334 m?) shall be 1,500
gallons per minute (95 L/s) for a minimum duration of 30 minutes.

Exception: A reduction in required flow rate of 50 percent, as approved by the code official, is allowed
where the building is provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system.

2. Buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings. The water supply required for buildings other
than one- and two-family dwellings shall be as approved by the code official but shall not be less than
1,500 gallons per minute (95 L/s) for a duration of 2 hours.

Exception: A reduction in required flow rate of up to 75 50 percent, as approved by the code official, is
allowed where the building is provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system. The resulting
water supply shall not be less than 1,500 gallons per minute (94.6 L/s).

Section 501.2 Objective

Section 501.2 is amended to read:

501.2 Objective. The objective of this chapter is to establish minimum standards to locate, design and
construct buildings and structures or portions thereof for the protection of life and property, to resist
damage from wildfires, and to mitigate building and structure fires from spreading to wildland fuels.

The minimum standards set forth in this chapter vary with the critical fire weather, slope and fuel type
to provide increased protection, above the requirements set forth in the International Building Code and
the International Residential Code, from the various levels of hazards.

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Section 502.1 General

Section 502.1 is amended to read:

502.1 General. The fire hazard severity of building sites for all buildings hereafter constructed, modified
or relocated into wildland-urban interface areas shall be established in accordance with Table 502.1 or
Appendix C or the map developed by the Authority Having Jurisdiction as determined by the code

official. See-alse-Appendix-C:

Table 503.1 Ignition-Resistant Construction

Table 503.1 is amended to read as follows:

Table 503.1

IGNITION-RESISTANT CONSTRUCTION 2

DEFENSIBLE FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY
SPACE ¢ Moderate Hazard High Hazard Extreme Hazard
Water supply ¢ Water supply ® Water supply ®

Conforming? | Nonconforming® | Conforming? | Nonconforming® | Conformingd | Nonconforming
e

Nonconforming IR2 IR1 IR1 IR1 IR1 Not
N.C. N.C. Permitted

Conforming IR3 IR2 IR2 IR1 IR1 IR1

N.C.

15x Not IR3 IR3 IR2 IR2 IR1

Conforming

Required

a. Access shall be in accordance with Section 403.
b. Subdivisions shall have a conforming water supply in accordance with Section 402.1.

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



IR 1= Ignition-resistant construction in accordance with Section 504.
IR 2= Ignition-resistant construction in accordance with Section 505.
IR 3= Ignition-resistant construction in accordance with Section 506.
N.C.= Exterior walls shall have a fire-resistance rating of not less than 1 hour and the exterior
surfaces of such walls shall be noncombustible. Usage of log wall construction is allowed.

¢. Conformance based on Section 603.
Conformance based on Section 404,
A nonconforming water supply is any water system or source that does not comply with Section
404, including situations where there is not water supply for structure protection or fire
suppression.

f. Only with the approval of the fire code official

Section 504.2 Roof covering

Section 504.2 is amended to read:

504.2 Roof covering. Roofs shall have a Class A roof assembly. For roof coverings where the profile
allows a space between the roof covering and roof decking, the space at the eave ends and ridge line
shall be fire-stopped to preclude entry of flames or embers, or have one layer of 72-pound (32.4 kg)
mineral-surfaced, nonperforated cap sheet complying with ASTM D 3909 installed over the
combustible decking. Roof coverings consisting of shakes or shingles made of wood are not approved as
part of any Class A roof assembly.

Exceptions:

1. Class A roof assemblies include those with coverings of brick, masonry or an exposed concrete
roof deck.

2. Class A roof assemblies also include ferrous or copper shingles or sheets, metal sheets and
shingles, clay or concrete roof tile or slate installed on noncombustible decks or ferrous, copper
or metal sheets installed without a roof deck on noncombustible framing.

Class A roof assemblies include a minimum 16 0z/sq. ft. (0.0416 kg/m?) copper sheets installed over
combustible decks.

Section 504.7.1 Underfloor areas

Section 504.7.1 is amended to read:

504.7.1 Underfloor areas. When the attached structure is located and constructed so that the structure
or any portion thereof projects over a descending slope surface greater than 10 percent, the area below
the structure shall have all underfloor areas enclosed to within 6 inches (152 mm) of the ground, with
exterior wall construction in accordance with Section 504.5.

2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Exception: When approved by the code official, unenclosed underfloor areas are allowed and are to be
kept free of all combustible materials.

Section 504.10.1 Vent locations

Section 504.10.1 is amended to read:

504.10.1 Vent locations. Attic ventilation openings shall not be located in soffits, in eave overhangs,
between rafters at eaves, or in other overhang areas. Ember-resistant gable end and dormer vents shall
be located at least 10 feet (3048 mm) from lot lines. Underfloor ventilation openings shall be located as
close to grade as practical.

Exceptions:

1. Listed vents complying with ASTM E2886.
1.1 The Ember Intrusion Test shall have no flaming ignition of the cotton material.
1.2 These shall be no flaming ignition during the Integrity Test portion of the Flame Intrusion
Test. The maximum temperature of the unexposed side of the vent shall not exceed 662

degrees Fahrenheit (350 degrees Celsius).

The fire code official may accept or approve special eave and cornice vents that resist the intrusion of
flame and burning embers.

Section 505.2 Roof covering

Section 505.2 is amended to read:

505.2 Roof Covering. Roofs shall have a roof assembly that complies with not less than a Class A 8
rating when tested in accordance with ASTM E108 or UL 790;-e+an-approved-roncombustible-roof
eovering. For roof coverings where the profile allows a space between the roof covering and roof
decking, the space at the eave ends shall be fire stopped to preclude entry of flames or embers, or have
one layer of 72-pound mineral-surfaced, nonperforated cap sheet complying with ASTM D3909 installed
over the combustible decking

10
2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Section 505.10.1 Vent locations

Section 505.10.1 is amended to read:

505.10.1 Vent locations. Attic ventilation openings shall not be located in soffits, in eave overhangs,
between rafters at eaves, or in other overhang areas. Ember-resistant gable end and dormer vents shall
be located at least 10 feet (3048 mm) from lot lines. Underfloor ventilation openings shall be located as
close to grade as practical.

Exceptions:

1. Listed vents complying with ASTM E2886.
1.1 The Ember Intrusion Test shall have no flaming ignition of the cotton material.
1.2 These shall be no flaming ignition during the Integrity Test portion of the Flame Intrusion
Test. The maximum temperature of the unexposed side of the vent shall not exceed 662
degrees Fahrenheit (350 degrees Celsius).

The fire code official may accept or approve special eave and cornice vents that resist the intrusion of
flame and burning embers.

Section 603.2.1.1 Adjacent land

Section 603.2.1.1 is added to Section 603.2.1 Responsible party to read:
603.2.1 Responsible party. Persons owning, leasing, controlling, operating or maintaining buildings or

structures requiring defensible spaces are responsible for modifying or removing non-fire-resistive
vegetation on the property owned, leased or controlled by said person.

603.2.1.1 Adjacent land. Property owners of land that is directly adjacent to property containing
buildings or structures requiring defensible space are responsible for modifying or removing non-fire-
resistive vegetation on said property.

603.2.2 Trees
Section 603.2.2 is amended to read:

603.2.2 Trees. Trees are allowed within the defensible space, provided the horizontal distance between
crowns of adjacent trees and crowns of trees and structures, overhead electrical facilities or unmodified
fuel is not less than 10 feet (3048 mm) or an acceptable distance as determined by the code official.

11
2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Section 604.4 Trees
Section 604.4 is amended to read:

604.4 Trees. Tree crowns extending to within 10 feet (3048 mm) of any structure shall be pruned to
maintain a minimum herizentatclearance of 10 feet (3048 mm) or an acceptable distance as determined
by the code official. Tree crowns within the defensible space shall be pruned to remove limbs located
less than 6 10 feet (3829 3048 mm) above the ground surface adjacent to the trees; or an acceptable
distance as determined by the code official.

Section 604.4.1 Chimney clearance
Section 604.4.1 is amended to read:

604.4.1 Chimney clearance. Portions of tree crowns that extend to within 10 feet (3048 mm) of the
outlet of a chimney shall be pruned to maintain a minimum he+izental clearance of 10 feet (3048 mm).

604.5 Non-combustible area
Section 604.5 is added to Section 604 Maintenance of Defensible Space to read:
604.5 Non-combustible area. The area extending from the base of any structure to 5 feet beyond the

base of such structure shall be composed entirely of non-combustible material or fire resistive
vegetation.

Section 607.1 General

Section 607.1 is amended to read:

607.1 General. Firewood and combustible material shall not be stored in unenclosed spaces beneath
buildings or structures, or on decks or under eaves, canopies or other projections or overhangs. When
required by the code official, storage of firewood and combustible material stored in the defensible
space shall be located a minimum of 26-30 feet (6096 mm) from structures and separated from the
crown of trees by a minimum horizontal distance of 15 feet (4572 mm).

Exception. Approved fire-resistance-rated coverings used in accordance with their listing and as
approved and allowed by the Fire Code Official.

12
2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



Appendix Section B101.1 Scope
Section B101.1 is amended to read:

B101.1 Scope. Where required vegetation management plans shall be submitted to the code official and
the State Forester Fire Warden for review and approval as part of the plans required for a permit.

Appendix Section B101.2 Plan content

Section B101.2 is amended to read:

B101.2 Plan content. Vegetation management plans shall describe all actions that will be taken to
prevent a fire from being carried toward or away from the building. A vegetation management plan shall
include at least the following information:

1. A copy of the site defensible space plan.

2. Methods and timetables for controlling, changing or modifying areas on the property. Elements of the
plan shall include removal of slash, snags, vegetation that may grow into overhead electrical lines, other
ground fuels, ladder fuels and dead trees, and the thinning of live trees.

3. A plan for maintaining the proposed fuel-reduction measures.
Appendix Section B102 Defensible Space Plans
Sections B102, B102.1, and B102.2 are added to Appendix B Vegetation Management Plan is read:

B102 Defensible Space Plans.

B102.1 General. Where required, defensible space plans must be submitted to the code official for
review and approval as part of the plans required for a permit.

B102.2 Plan content. A defensible space plan shall include at least the following information:

1. Property boundaries.

2. Current and proposed structures on the property.

3. Trees and vegetation taller than 3 feet in height.

4. Individual plant or brush fields 20 square feet or larger in area.

5. Tree drip lines.

6. Roads and driveways in abutting the property.

13
2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments



2018 Northern Nevada Wildland-Urban Interface Code Amendments

14



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: ||-9-1% Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

7.

8.

. Title: Second reading for General Business License — U.S. Security Associates, 1320 Freeport

"~ Blvd. , Sparks, NV 89434. Security Guard Service Provider.

. Recommended motion: I motion to approve the second reading for the General Business

License — U.S. Security Associates, 1320 Freeport Blvd., Sparks, NV 89434. Security
Guard Service Provider.

. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.

Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959
. Staff summary: Second reading for General Business License — U.S. Security Associates,

1320 Freeport Blvd., Sparks, NV 89434, Security Guard Service Provider.

. Supporting materials: None
. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
Legal review required: District Attorney
Reviewed by:
~ X __ Department Head Department N}me: Sherift, Gerald Antinoro
e
e & e e
[
County Manager Other agency review:
. Board action:
[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. {(D



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9,2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and Possible action to approve Resolution No. 18 — 519 announcing an
intention to lease a portion of 1705 Peru Drive to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no rent.

2. Recommended motion | Commissioner, hereby move to approve Resolution No.
18 — 519 and authorized the Chairman to sign

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff summary: Resolution 18-51 9 constitutes notice that the County is proposing to lease a
portion of its complex located at 1705 Peru Drive to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no
vent. The Resolution requires publication of a Notice of approval of the Resolution in a
newspaper and sets a date at which objection to the proposed lease may be heard.

Adoption of the resolution, publication of the adoption and a hearing to consider objections
is required by NRS 277.050.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 18 - 519

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
X  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
(] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

L L



Agenda Item No.



RESOLUTION NO. 18- 519

RESOLUTION Declaring Intention of Storey County to Lease Real Property
and Improvements Located at 1705 Peru Avenue

WHEREAS, NRS 277.050 authorizes the Board of County Commissionets of Storey
County to lease to a department or agency of the State of Nevada any real property belonging to

the County.; and,

WHEREAS, The land and improvements located at 1705 Peru Avenue is real property

owned by Storey County; and,

WHEREAS; The Nevada Highway Patrol is an agency of the State of Nevada which

desires to lease a portion of that property for highway patrol purposes, and,

WHEREAS, The County is prepared to lease the property to the Nevada Highway

Patrol.

NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

Storey County proposes to lease a portion of the land and improvements located at 1705 Peru
Avenue located within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no
rent. The proposed terms of the lease are set out in the attached Exhibit A. A hearing to
consider objections to the proposed lease will be held on the 4th day of December at the hour of
10:30 2.m. Notice of the adoption of this Resolution and of the time and date for the public
hearing must be published in a newspaper of general circulation published in Storey County at

least twice with the second publication occurring no less than 7 days before the hearing.

Signatures on Next Page



ADOPTED this day of ,2018

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (the “Lease”), made and entered into
this 15t day of October, 2018, by and between the STOREY COUNTY,
hereinafter referred to as LESSOR, and the STATE OF NEVADA,
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION, PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION, hereinafter
referred to as LESSEE, for and on behalf of the DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC SAFETY, NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL, hereinafter referred to as
TENANT (hereinafter collectively known as “the Parties”}.

WITNESSET H:

For and in consideration of the rents herein reserved and the
covenants, terms and conditions herein contained, the LESSOR does
by these presents lease unto LESSEE the following described
property:

Approximately 393 usable square feet of office space,

(the “Demised Premises” and “Shared Space”) located at

1705 Peru Drive, Sparks, Nevada 89434. Refer to WEXHIBIT

A", attached hereto and incorporated herein.

ONE. TERM OF LEASE.

1.1 Term of Lease. Subject to Section Twenty below, LESSOR

hereby leases unto LESSEE and LESSEE agrees to lease from LESSOR
approximately 393 usable square feet of office space, located at
1705 Peru Drive, Sparks, Nevada 89434, effective upon approval of
the Nevada Board of Examiners, expected to be on December 11, 2018,
retroactively commencing December 1, 2018 and terminating on

November 30, 2022, with an early occupancy of November 1, 2018.

Page 1 of 10
Storey County

DPS/NHP
1705 Peru Drlve, Sparks

State of Nevada
Department of Administration
public Works Division, Leasing Services Section

Sy hibiF )‘}




1.2 Lack of Funding. Not Applicable, ZERO dollar lease. See

Section Eleven below.

TWO. RENT. TENANT agrees to pay to the LESSOR as and for
rental for said Demised Premises the sum of:
2.1 A monthly total of ZERO DOLLARS AND 00/100 ($0.00).

THREE. UTILITIES AND SERVICES.

3.1 Utilities and Services Provided by LESSOR. LESSOR, at

LESSOR’S sole cost and expense, shall provide the Demised Premises
with utilities and services necessary to sustain a comfortable
professional office environment.

3.2 Utilities and Services Provided and Paid by TENANT.

a) TELEPHONE/DATA. TENANT shall provide state-owned

telephone and computer/data equipment and pay Industrial Standard
user fees for telephone/data services.

b) JANITORIAL SERVICES. TENANT shall provide janitorial

services for the Demised Premises.

3.3 Hours of Operation. TENANT shall have access to the

Demised Premise and the Shared Space twenty-four hours a day 365
days a year as necessary to carry out its operations.

3.4 Building Access. LESSOR shall provide TENANT with access

control cards, alarm codes, and building keys for TENANT employees’
access to the Demised Premises and Shared Space. TENANT shall be
responsible for safeguarding all LESSOR access control cards,
alarm codes, and building keys and ensuring that only authorized

employees have building access.

Page 2 of 10
State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Adwinistration DPS/NHP
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




3.5 Co-location. TENANT and LESSOR shall ensure that their
respective employees are sufficiently certified to view, modify,
or otherwise use data which may be housed within the building. It
is the responsibility of TENANT and LESSOR to safeguard the privacy
of its own data.

Neither LESSOR’S nor TENANT’S personnel shall act in any
manner that unreasonably causes disruption to the other party'’s
right to quiet enjoyment of the Premises.

FOUR., REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE. LESSOR, at LESSOR'S sole cost

and expense, agrees to provide maintenance and make any and all
repairs necessary to keep the Demised Premises in a first-class
condition during the Lease Term. TENANT shall reimburse LESSOR for
repairs and replacements to the Demised Premises which are
necessary due to TENANT’'S misuse or negligence.

FIVE. ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS. TENANT shall

not negotiate or cause to be made any alterations, additions or
improvements in or to the Demised Premises. TENANT may, at any
time during the Lease Term, requisition LESSEE in writing to
negotiate and arrange alterations, additions, or improvements in
and to the Demised Premises by the LESSOR.

STX. PAYMENT OF TAXES AND INSURBNCE. LESSOR, at their sole

cost and expense, agrees to maintain property and liability
insurance on the building complex and improvements on the Demised
Premises and Shared Space at all times during the Term of this

TLease. LESSOR will pay all applicable real property taxes or any

Page 3 of 10
State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Administration DPS/NHP
public Works Division, Leasing Services Sectlon 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




other assessments on the Demised Premises when due, including
improvements thereon during the Lease Term hereof or any renewal
period.

TENANT shall maintain in force at its sole cost and expense,
all risk property insurance coverage, including sprinkler leakage
(1f the building is equipped with sprinklers), in an amount equal
to the replacement cost of TENANT’'S trade fixtures, furnishings,
equipment, and contents upon the Demised Premises.

The State of Nevada is self-insured for both liability and
property insurance. All liability claims are handled in accordance
with Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 41. Regarding property
insurance, the State self-insures the first Five Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($500,000.00) of each loss. Claims above that amount are
commercially insured under an all risks property insurance policy.

SEVEN. INDEMNIFICATION. To the extent of the 1liability

limitation set forth in NRS Chapter 41, the LESSEE/TENANT hereby
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless LESSOR, its successor,
assigns, agents and employees from all claims, damages, losses and
expenses due to TENANT negligence arising out of or resulting from
the use and occupancy of the Demised Premises and Shared Space or
any accident in connection therewith, but only to the extent caused
in whole or in part by negligent acts or omissions of TENANT, its
subtenants, employees or agents. The State shall not be required
to indemnify the LESSOR, its successors, assigns, agents and

employees for any liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses

Page 4 of 10
Storey County

DPS/NHP
1705 pPeru Drive, Sparks

State of Nevadaz
Department of Administration
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section




relating to or arising out of this Lease to the extent caused in
whole or in part by the acts, negligence or omission of LESSOR,
its successors, assigns, agents, and employees, or anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any
of them may be liable. Such obligation shall not be construed to
negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation
of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person
described in this paragraph.

EIGHT. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. LESSOR and LESSEE or TENANT

hereby waive any rights each may have against the other for loss
or damage to its property or property in which it may have an
interest where such loss is caused by a peril of the type generally
covered by all risk property insurance with extended coverage or
arising from any cause which the claiming party was obligated to
insure against under this Lease, and each party waives any right
of subrogation regarding such property damage or losses, that it
might otherwise have against the other party, any additional
designated insured and any other tenant in the building. The
Parties agree to cause their respective insurance companies
insuring the Demised Premises or insuring their property on or in
the Demised Premises to execute a waiver of any such rights of
subrogation or, if so provided in the insurance contract, to give
notice to the insurance carrier or carriers that the foregoing

mutual waiver of subrogation is contained in this Lease.

Page 5 of 10

State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Administration DPS/NHP
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




NINE. BREACH OR DEFAULT. In the event of any failure by

LESSOR, LESSEE, or TENANT to keep and comply with any of the terms,
covenants or provisions of this Lease or remedy any breach thereof,
the defaulting party shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt
of written notice of such default or breach within which to remove
or cure said default or breach, or in the event the defaulting
party is diligently pursuing the removal or cure of such breach,
a reasonable time shall be allowed beyond the thirty (30) days.

TEN. ATTORNEY'S FEES. In the event suilt is brought by LESSCOR

or by LESSEE or TENANT for breach of any express provision or
condition of this Lease, the prevailing party of such action shall
be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees, not to exceed $125.00
per hour, which shall be deemed to have accrued on the commencement
of the action and shall be paid on the successful completion of
that suit by LESSOR, LESSEE or TENANT whichever the case may be.

ELEVEN. TERMINATION. This Lease may be terminated by mutual

consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without
cause, provided that a termination shall not be effective until
ninety (90) days after a party has serviced written notice upon
the other party. The parties expressly agree that this Lease shall
be terminated immediately if for any reason State and/or Federal
funding ability to satisfy this Lease is withdrawn, limited, or
impaired.

TWELVE. HOLDOVER TENANCY. If TENANT holds possession of the

Demised Premises after the expiration of this Lease or if written

Page 6 of 10
State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Administration DPS/NHP
public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




notice of intent to renew for any option period herein is not
provided as specified, this Lease shall become a month-to-month
lease on the terms herein specified. The monthly rent for each
month shall be in an amount equal to the monthly rental immediately
preceding the Expiration Date.

THIRTEEN. OPTION TO RENEW. LESSEE shall have the option to

renew this Lease by giving written notice of intention to renew at
least ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the Lease Term or
any renewal period hereunder. Receipt of which shall be
acknowledged by LESSOR in writing. The exercise of the option
shall, however, not be effective nor binding on the Parties herein
unless and until the same has been approved by the Nevada Board of
Examiners, which may occur after the required prior written notice.
FOURTEEN . REMEDIES . The remedies given to LESSOR, LESSEE
and/or TENANT shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any one
remedy shall not be to the exclusion of any other remedy.
FIFTEEN. NOTICES. All notices under this Lease shall be in
writing and delivered in person or sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, to LESSOR and in all cases jointly to both
LESSEFE and TENANT at their respective addresses set forth below or

to such other address as may hereafter be designated by either

party in writing:

Page 7 of 10
State of Nevada Storey County

Department of Administration NPS/NHP
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Seclion 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




LESSOR

Storey County

PO Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Telephone: (775) 847-0930
Fax: (775) 847-0949

LESSEE

State of Nevada

Department of Administration
Public Works Division

Attention: Leasing Services

515 East Musser Street, Suite 102
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4263
Telephone: (775) 684-1815

Fax: (775) 684-1817

TENANT

Department of Public Safety
Attn: Contract Manager

555 Wright Way

Carson City, Nevada 89711
Telephone: (775) 684-4698
Fax: (775) 684-4809

SIXTEEN. SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Lease

or the application of it to any person or circumstance shall to
any extent determined in a legal proceedings to be invalid and
unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease (or the application of
such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those
as to which it is invalid or unenforceable) shall not be affected
thereby, and each term and provision of this Lease shall be valid
and shall be enforced to the extent permitted by law,

SEVENTEEN. AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION. This Lease constitutes

the entire agreement between the Parties and may only be amended

Page B of 10
State of Nevada Storey County

Department of Administration DPS/NHP
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




or modified with the mutual consent of the Parties hereto, which
amendment or modification must be in writing, executed and dated
by the Parties hereto and approved by the Nevada Board of
Examiners.

EIGHTEEN, PARKING. LESSOR shall provide TENANT, two (2)
reserved parking spaces for marked patrol vehicles and privately
owned employee vehicles as necessary for use by employees assigned
to work at the Premises, at no cost to the TENANT.

NINETEEN. PRIOR TERMINATION. This Lease may be terminated

prior to the terms set forth herein above if for any reason, the
purpose of this Lease is substantially impaired or obstructed by
any event, occurrence or circumstance outside the control of
LESSOR, LESSEE, or TENANT, including any governmental
condemnation, without prejudice or penalty to any party hereto and
without such event, occurrence or circumstance being defined, and
interpreted or construed as breach or default on the part of any
party.

TWENTY. PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE NEVADA BOARD OF EXAMINERS. This

Lease is contingent upon prior approval by the Nevada Board of
Examiners and is not binding upon the Parties hereto or effective

until such approvals.

TWENTY-ONE. COUNTERPARTS. This Lease may be executed in one

or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original and

all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

Page 9 of 10

State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Administration DPS/NHP
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this

Lease as of the day and year first above written.

LESSOR LESSEE
STOREY COUNTY STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION

By
Pat Whitten
County Manager By
('w ard D. Patrick, PE
Date R :
— ~Administrator
Reviewed as to form and BSiEe
compliance with law only:
TENANT

PAUL ADAM LAXALT

ELTOENEE CREE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

By By . .
Susan K. Stewart giﬁzthElght
Deputy Attorney General
Date o Date
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
Approved by: NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL

BOARD OF EXAMINERS

By _
John OfRourke

By .
Paul Nicks EhRES

Interim Clerk of the Board

Date

Date

ACE Page 10 of 10
bty State of Nevada Storey County
Xim* Department of Administration DPS/NHP
i

s Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks

5

SR A%
Ly




— e EXHIBIT “A”

g
= §
c o
5 :
(@]
: :
(@]
¥ /
it
a

P
>
\

; % 53 %

PORTION OF STOREY COUNTY McCARRAN

STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS GOVERNMENT CENTER FLOOR PLAN

P.0.BOX 435 - 100 TOLL ROAD
VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440
775 847 0958

I
|
|
SNOISIASYH '

|
|
C




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 11/9/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ]| Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Amending of existing liquor license for the Ponderosa Saloon. Add Off-sale.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve the amending of the existing liquor license for the
Ponderosa Saloon, Cheryl Bailey, 106 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440,

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Amending of the existing liquor license for Cheryl Bailey for the Ponderosa
Saloon, 106 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Add off-sale.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: ~ Comptroller

7. Legal review required: __ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
~ X Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro
_ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
—

Agenda Item No. | %



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

Novaw

10.

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2018-043 is a request to allow the
applicants to convert an existing detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family
on a developed residential property. The subject property is located at 2650 Castle Peak Road,
Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-331-11.

A. Recommended motion by Staff: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, but against
the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this
report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in
compliance with the conditions of approval, deleting conditions O and P, I (county commissioner),
move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-043 to allow the applicant to convert an existing detached
garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family on a developed residential property, and
that the size of the accessory dwelling unit be between 500 square feet and 1,000 square feet. The
subject property is located at 2650 Castle Peak Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-331-11.

B. Recommended motion by Planning Commission: In accordance with the recommendation by
the Planning Commission, but against the recommendation by staff, and in accordance with the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board
of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval deleting conditions G,
I, J, K, M and N and adding conditions O and P, I (county commissioner), move to approve Special
Use Permit 2018-043 to allow the applicant to convert an existing detached garage to an accessory
dwelling unit for immediate family on a developed residential property and to allow for the accessory
dwelling unit not to exceed 1,584 square feet in size. The subject property is located at 2650 Castle
Peak Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-
331-11.

Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-043

Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-043

Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller
Legal review required: _ District Attorney
Reviewed by:

___ Department Head _ Department Name: Planning

____ County Manager ___ Other agency review:

Board action:
[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[ Denied [1] Continued
Agenda Item No. I ®)



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

November 9, 2018

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

Special Use Permit File 2018-043

Timothy Farrell and Tracy Young

Timothy Farrell and Tracy Young

2650 Castle Peak Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada

Special Use Permit 2018-043 is a request to allow the applicants to convert an
existing detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family on
a developed residential property. The subject property is located at 2650
Castle Peak Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s
Parcel Number (APN) 003-331-11.

Summary of Planning Commission Meeting:

The Planning Commission reviewed the application for the Special Use Permit at
their October 18, 2018, meeting. The discussion centered around the
conversion of the existing detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit and
the limitations on size that the zoning code identifies as permissible for
accessory dwelling units, the ability of the applicant to convert only a portion of
the structure to an accessory dwelling unit and the need to remove the
accessory dwelling unit to a non-dwelling use when vacated. The discussion
also included analyzing the requirements listed in 17.12.046.C. At the
conclusion of the discussion, the Planning Commission recommended (voting 5
aye, 1 nay, 1 absent), that six (6) recommended conditions of approval be
deleted, that two (2) new conditions be added, and that the applicant be

1 of 14



allowed to have an accessory dwelling unit not to exceed 1,584 square feet in
size.

Staff Response to Planning Commission Recommendation:

Planning staff recognize the concerns the Planning Commission raised during
the discussion of the proposed application and Chapter 17.12.046.C
requirements. The applicant and the Planning Commission presented valid
rationale for this particular case in regards to utilizing an existing structure and
the expenses and efforts to convert, and later reconvert, the existing structure
to an accessory dwelling unit. As part of the discussion, Planning Staff have
agreed to look at the Code section and evaluate the requirements and
potentially present modifications to this portion of the Code in the near future.

At this time, however, Staff stands by the recommendation for approval for the
Special Use Permit with the requirement that the accessory dwelling not exceed
1,000 square feet in area. There have been other applications before the
Planning Commission and the Board of County Commissioners where applicants
have been denied the additional area beyond the 1,000 square feet because of
this Code regulation and precedent it could set. The District Attorney’s office
during the meeting cautioned the Planning Commission not to condition a
Special Use Permit such that it effectively would amend the zoning code. In
addition, Staff routinely have discussions with community members designing
their own projects in relation to this code section requirements. Staff advise
that the appropriate method for allowing additional area for an accessory
dwelling unit would be to amend the Code section so that this allowance would
be available to all, or to define the circumstances in which additional area could
be permissible, rather than eliminate a code requirement within a Special Use
Permit request.

1. Background & Analysis

A.

Site Location and Characteristics. The property is located within the 10-acre Highland
Ranches subdivision in Storey County, Nevada. The property is approximately 16.70 in
size and is zoned Estates E-10 HR. The site is currently developed with a residence, a
detached garage, a barn and animal shed. Surrounding land uses include a mix of
developed and undeveloped residential zoned land, Estates E-10 HR to the north and
west and E-1 VCH to the east and south.

20of14



Property Location




- & Fortin of Sea 29 & 32
= THNRZIE.MOBA M

- o o
oyl § e e WP i
[ citeisterd et it o ey 8 o Bt e it —

Existing Development and Surrounding Properties

4 of 14



Background. In 1988, the property owners at the time applied for and received a
Special Use Permit for the construction of a residence and detached 1,584 square foot
garage/barn structure. At the time, the property was considered Forestry and a Special
Use Permit was required and obtained. A Certificate of Occupancy was issued in May,
1994, for the residence on the property and the detached garage.

In November 1994, it was discovered that a portion of the detached garage had been
converted to a living space. The Building Department staff notified the owner at the
time that this was a violation and later in December 1994, confirmed that the living
space portion of the garage had been removed. Since 1994, Storey County has
recognized the structure as a detached garage with no residential component.

Zoning Ordinance. The property is zoned Estates E-10 HR. The 2015 Zoning Ordinance
defines Accessory Dwelling Unit — detached as “a separate and completely independent
dwelling unit on the same lot as the principal single-family dwelling or other principal
building, but which is physically separated from the principal building. A detached
accessory dwelling unit includes, at a minimum, a permanent kitchen and bathroom
with bathtub or shower. It may also include habitable space for living, sleeping, and
eating.”

Chapter 17.12.046 of the 2015 Zoning Ordinance goes on to identify the following
regulations associated with a proposed accessory dwelling:

C. Accessory dwellings in the E, R, NR and SPR zones

1. Special mse permit A special use permit for an accessory dwelling (attached
or detached) may be granted by the board with action by the planning
COmMmIission .

2. Minimum parcel size. The lot size must be at least: 10,000 square feet in the
R and SPR zones; 1 acre in the E zone; and 40 acres in the NR zone._

3. Principal cccupants. The owners of the property in which the accessory
dwelling unit is permitted shall occupy at least one of the dwelling units
{accessory or principal unit) on the premises, except for bona fide temporary
absence_

4. Building area. Attached and detached accessory dwellings may be no less
than 500 square feet. A detached accessory dwelling may be no more than
1,000 square feet.

5. Parking. At least I off-street parking space shall be provided in addition to
the required parking requirements for the principal use.

6. Omne allowed. Only 1 accessory dwelling vnit is allowed per parcel

7. Affidavit of family. If the accessory dwelling is occupied, an affidanit
provided by the planning department and signed by the property owner(s)
must be filed with the building and planning departments. It must state the
namef(s) of person(s) cecupying the principal and accessory dwellings and
describe the family lineage between the property owners(s) and the person
occupving the accessory dwelling.

8. Deed restriction. A deed restriction shall be filed with the county recorder’™s
office stating that the accessory dwelling unit is a temporary use for
immediate family members_ Tt shall stipulate that the unit will be vacated and
converted to a non-dwelling use (in accordance with the building code) at
such time that the immediate family member{s) no longer occupy the unit.
The deed restriction form will be provided by the planning department and it
shafl make the county a party to the deed restriction. The planning
department shall agree in-writing to allow the property owners(s) to remove
the deed restriction if the owner legally converts the accessory dwelling to a
non-dwelling use. A copy of the recorded deed restriction shall be required
and presented to the building department prior to issuance of a building
permit.

50f 14



The applicant proposes to meet all of the above conditions while requesting an approval
for additional size of the accessory dwelling unit. The applicant would like to utilize the
entire area of the existing garage (1,584 square feet) as the accessory dwelling unit.

This exceeds the requirement that the accessory dwelling unit not exceed 1,000 square
feet.

Existing residence and garage, view looking from the north

6 of 14



Existing structure

Special Use Permit. This property is currently subject to the provisions of the 2015
Zoning Ordinance of Storey County. The property is zoned Estates, E-10 HR. An
accessory dwelling is permissible subject to a Special Use Permit being obtained in
accordance with Section 17.12.046.

Compatibility and Compliance

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones.

The following table documents land uses, zoning classifications, and master plan
designations for the land at and surrounding the proposed project.

Land Use Master Plan Designation | Zoning Code
Applicant’s Land Residential Single Family Estate Estates E-10 HR
Land to the North | Residential Single Farnily Estate Estates E-10 HR
Land to the East Residential and vacant | Single Family Estate Estates E-1 VCH
Land to the South | Residential and vacant | Single Family Estate Estates E-1 VCH
Land to the West Residential Single Family Estate Estates E-10 HR

Compliance with Accessory Dwellings, Location and Placement. An existing detached
garage is proposed to be converted to an accessory dwelling unit. The parcel size is
approximately 16.70 acres, which is consistent with the requirement for the Estates
zone to be one acre in size to allow for an accessory dwelling. The parcel provides off-
street parking for the accessory dwelling. The applicant lives in the main residence on
the parcel and the proposed accessory dwelling will be utilized by immediate family
members. An Affidavit of Family statement and a deed restriction will be required as a
condition of approval if the application is approved.

7 of 14



The applicants are requesting that the entirety of the existing 1,584 square foot
detached accessory garage be allowed to be converted to an accessory dwelling unit,
exceeding the allowable area identified in Section 17.12.046.C of the zoning code. The
Code allows for a minimum of 500 square feet and a maximum of 1,000 square feet in
area for accessory dwelling units.

in order to conform to the zoning code, staff recommends that the accessory dwelling
unit not exceed 1,000 square feet. However, an alternative motion not recommended
by staff, but allowing for 1,584 square feet is provided in Proposed Motion 7.B of this
staff report for consideration.

Compliance with required setbacks. No exterior construction is associated with the
Special Use Permit. The accessory dwelling has a 15-foot side yard setback and meets
the 30-foot front yard setback requirement identified in both Chapters 17.12.045 and
17.40.

General use allowances and restrictions. Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use
Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is
appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings listed below are the minimum
to be cited in an approval.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed accessory dwelling will be consistent with the requirements of
Section 17.12.046 which identifies the regulations for accessory dwellings as
identified in the motion for approval and the proposed recommended
conditions of approval. As a condition of approval, the proposed accessory
dwelling will be required to demonstrate it does not exceed 1,000 square feet in
area. The accessory dwelling is permissible in accordance with the regulations
for the residential zoning and is consistent with the Zoning Ordinance as
conditioned and the Storey County Master Plan.

An alternative motion, not recommended by staff, to allow for an accessory
dwelling unit exceeding 1,000 square feet is provided. To make the required
finding, the Board of County Commissioners would need to find the proposed
Special Use Permit complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives and
standards of the zoning ordinance.

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

8 of 14



(3)

(4)

The accessory dwelling will be located within an existing structure that was
previously approved by Storey County. No exterior construction is proposed
with this Special Use Permit application.

Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The accessory dwelling will be located within an existing structure. The site
contains adequate parking area to allow for no impacts to parking on adjacent
roadways. The property is located within an existing residential neighborhood
where accessory dwellings can be permitted. The accessory dwelling will be
utilized by immediate family members of the primary residence owner. A
signed affidavit is required documenting this requirement and a deed restriction
will be required in accordance with Chapter 17.12.046 requirements.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental
services or impact existing governmental facilities. The property is located
within an existing developed area of the Highland Ranches subdivision. As a
condition of project approval, the existing and/or proposed septic system for
the property must meet the State of Nevada requirements. Prior to occupying
the structure as an accessory dwelling, approval of the septic system from the
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health shall be submitted to the
Planning Department. Also as a condition of project approval, the applicant will
be required to provide evidence from the Nevada Division of Water Resources
that the existing well is adequate for Nevada Revised Statutes requirements.

2016 Storey County Master Plan. The 2016 Storey County Master Plan designates the

Highland Ranches as a Rural Residential community with parcels no less than ten acres.
Section 3.5.3 Goals and Objectives for land uses in the Highlands (p. 120) states in Goal 1
that land use decisions, including the implementation of zoning and regulations in and
around the Highlands area must preserve the rural residential character and conform to
historic use patterns in the Highlands area. The proposed conversion of an existing
garage to an accessory dwelling for immediate family members of the existing primary
residence does not appear to conflict with this provision of the master plan.

9 of 14



3.

Findings of Fact

A.

Motion for approval. The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the

requested special use permit when the recommended conditions of approval in Section
4, Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

This approval is for Special Use Permit 2018-043 to allow the applicant to
convert an existing detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate
family on a developed residential property. The subject property is located at
2650 Castle Peak Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-331-11.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Virginia City Highlands Rural Residential community area in which the subject
property is located. A discussion supporting this finding for the Special Use
Permit is provided in Section 2.E of this staff report and the contents thereof are
cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit. The Special Use Permit complies
with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the county master
plan, the zoning ordinance and any other plan, program, map or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to the official notice by the county.

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The Special Use Permit will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on
adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions,
parking, public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of
the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The Special Use Permit, with the recommended conditions of approval,
complies with the requirements of Chapters 17.03.150 — Special Use Permit,
17.12.046 — Accessory Dwellings, Location and Placement, and 17.40 Estate
Zone.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,

the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

10 of 14



(1) This denial is for Special Use Permit 2018-043 to deny the applicant to convert
an existing detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family
on a developed residential property. The subject property is located at 2650
Castle Peak Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s
Parcel Number (APN) 003-331-11.

(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements/findings in the 2015 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections
17.03.150 -Special Use Permit, 17.12.046 - Accessory Dwellings, Location and
Placement and/or 17.40 Estate Zone.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit. Special Use Permit 2018-043 allows the applicant to convert an
existing detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family on a
developed residential property. The subject property is located at 2650 Castle Peak
Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)
003-331-11.

Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for any/all required permits and licenses,
including building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from the date of
final approval of this Special Use Permit, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This permit shall remain valid
as long as the Permit Holder remains in compliance with the terms of this permit and
Storey County, Nevada State, and federal regulations.

Permit Contents. This permit incorporates by reference the standards, objectives,
conditions, terms and requirements of all plans and submitted separately from this
permit. The requirements of all submitted plan, along with support material submitted
with the application, become part of this Special Use Permit.

Separate Permits Required. This Special Use Permit shall not be construed to be a
permit for design or construction. A separate Storey County plan review, fire safety
review, and building permit may be required for work previously performed or for
future construction.

Legal Responsibility. Issuance of this permit does not convey property rights of any sort
or any exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any
invasion of other private rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

Hold Harmless. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its Officers and
Representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any

11 of 14



M.

damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result
of this Variance.

Deed Restriction. A deed restriction shall be filed with the county recorder’s office
stating that the accessory dwelling unit is a temporary use for immediate family
members. It shall stipulate that the unit will be vacated and converted to a non-
dwelling use {in accordance with the building code) at such time that the immediate
family member(s) no longer occupy the units. The county shall be a part of the deed
restriction and the deed restriction shall comply with Section 17.12.046.C.8 of the
Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Certificate of Occupancy. The Permit Holder shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for
the accessory dwelling structure. The structure shall not be utilized as an accessory
dwelling unit prior to obtaining the Certificate of Occupancy from the Storey County
Community Development Department.

Septic. The Permit Holder shall provide evidence from the Nevada Division of Public and
Behavioral Health that the septic system existing and/or proposed onsite meets the
requirements of the State of Nevada. The structure shall not be occupied as an
accessory dwelling unit until such evidence of conformance with Nevada regulations has
been provided to both the Planning and Building Departments.

Water Well. The Permit Holder shall provide evidence from the Nevada Division of
Water Resources that the existing well is adeguate for Nevada Revised Statutes
reguirements. If a meter is required by the Nevada Division of Water Resources to
demonstrate that the principal dwelling unit and the accessory dwelling do not exceed
two acre-feet of use per year as provided by Nevada statutes, the water usage
measurements from the meter must be submitted by the parcel owner to the Nevada

Division of Water Resources in accordance with their requirements.

Transfer of Rights. The special use permit belongs exclusively to Timothy Farrell and
Tracy Young and the real property subject to this permit so long as the one or both
owners own and maintain primary residence at the subject property. This special use

permit is non-transferable.

Property Owners Association Approval. The holder of the special use permit must
obtain approval from the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association and
submit a copy of the certificate to the planning department.

Affidavit of Family. An Affidavit of family shall be provided to the Planning Department
in accordance with Section 17.12.046.C.7.

Accessory Dwelling Unit Size. The size of the accessory dwelling unit shall be no less
than 500 square feet in size and no greater than 1,000 feet in size.

Title 17. The Permit Holder shall comply with all provisions of Title 17 and to the
extent the provisions of Title 17 may be relaxed in the future, Permit Holder may
comply with the relaxed provisions.

12 of 14



P, Accessory Dwelling Unit Size: The size of the accessory dwelling unit shall be no
greater than 1,584 square feet.

Public Comment
As of October 9, 2018, Staff has not received any comments from the public.
Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions
This section contains three motions from which to choose:

e 7.A This motion for approval is recommended by staff in accordance, but against the
recommendation by the Planning Commission, with the Findings of Fact under Section
3.A of this report. The finding states the accessory dwelling unit shall be consistent with
the zoning code requirements of a size between 500 square feet and 1,000 square feet.
These findings should be made part of the approval motion. The Recommended
Conditions of Approval in red underline (G, 1, J, K, M and N) should remain and
conditions in blue bold italicized (@, £) should be deleted.

e 7.B An alternative motion for approval, recommended by the Planning Commission, but
against the recommendation of staff, would allow for the accessory dwelling to be
approved at the site and allow the size of the accessory dwelling to be a maximum 1,584
square feet in size. The same Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report should be
made part of the approval motion. If selected, the Recommended Conditions of
Approval in red underline (G, |, J, K, M and N) should be eliminated and the conditions in
blue bold italicized (©, P) should be added.

e 7.C A motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the
findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either motion. This motion
would deny the accessory dwelling unit to be constructed on the property.

A Recommended motion for approval {staff recommendation)

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, but against the recommendation by
the Planning Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and
other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in
compliance with the conditions of approval, deleting conditions O and P, | (county
commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2018-043 to allow the applicant to
convert an existing detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family
on a developed residential property, and that the size of the accessory dwelling unit be

13 of 14



between 500 square feet and 1,000 square feet. The subject property is located at
2650 Castle Peak Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 003-331-11.

Alternative motion for approval (Planning Commission recommendation)

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission, but against the
recommendation by staff, and in accordance with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A
of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval deleting conditions
G, |, J, K, Mand N and adding conditions O and P, | (county commissioner}, move to
approve Special Use Permit 2018-043 to allow the applicant to convert an existing
detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family on a developed
residential property and to allow for the accessory dwelling unit not to exceed 1,584
square feet in size. The subject property is located at 2650 Castle Peak Road, Virginia
City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-331-11.

Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.B of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | (county commissioner), move to
deny Special Use Permit 2018-043, to deny the applicant to convert an existing
detached garage to an accessory dwelling unit for immediate family on a developed
residential property. The subject property is located at 2650 Castle Peak Road, Virginia
City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-331-11.

14 of 14



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1 Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Variance 2018-044 is a request by the applicant to allow the
front yard setback for the construction of a new single family residence to be reduced from the
required 20-feet to 0-feet. The property is located at 381 S. E Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-132-26.

2. Recommended motion; In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, I (county commissioner), move to approve Variance 2018-044 to allow the front yard
setback for the construction of a new single family residence to be reduced from the required 20-
feet to O-feet. The property is located at 381 S. E Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada,
Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-132-26.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield
4, Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
S. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-044
6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-44
T Fiseal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: ____Comptroller

8. Legal review required: District Attorney

9, Reviewed by:

_,/ﬁ Department Head Department Name: Planning

County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No,

Ho



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fox 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

November 9, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

Kathy Canfield

2018-044

Edward and Molly Burnet

Edward and Molly Burnet

381 S. E Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, APN 001-132-26,

The applicants request a variance (Variance 2018-044) to allow the front yard
setback for the construction of a new single family residence to be reduced
from the required 20-feet to O-feet. The property is located at 381 S. E Street,

Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-132-
26.

Summary of Planning Commission Meeting:

The Planning Commission reviewed the project application at their October 18,
2018 meeting. After a discussion of the physical characteristics of the property,
along with the existing surrounding neighborhood, the Planning Commission
voted to recommend approval of the proposed front yard setback variance with
5 in favor, 0 opposed, 1 abstention and one commissioner was absent.

1. Background & Analysis
A. Site Location and Characteristics. The 10,044 square foot residential parcel is located

between E and F Streets. The parcel is currently vacant. The property is level along E
Street for a depth of approximately 65 feet when it then drops sharply off down
towards F Street. The residence is located along a residential street with a single
residence located to the south and multi-family residences to the north. The property

1



-8

BB ) o
Ttk ¥ | # )
S e

STOREY COUNTY

I r lhml EATIY, wivany
- B0 o 0 1 0 0 g e,
) ::-:--».w». LALL Nuul-':n ?f.lL1 e
pa it bt T TT TN o Sy e ‘ '0";«.

I R L r"n‘-\& Vimginin  Cily
: TS

Verom F Street below looking northwest



Background. The applicants have recently completed a boundary line adjustment
between the project parcel and a second parcel they own directly to the south. The
boundary line adjustment allowed for a smaller residence to be located on its own
parcel meeting the side yard setback, and also consolidated two existing parcels to allow
for the 10,044 square foot parcel. This document has been completed and recorded
with the County Recorder’s Office in September 2018.

Setbacks. This property is located within the CR zone, outside of the Downtown District,
within Virginia City. The property to the south is also owned by the applicants and they
have recently relocated a residence from B Street to the property. When placing the
residence, it was located with a 20-foot front yard setback from the property line.

The immediately adjacent multi-family structures were completed between 2000 and
2003, and were subject to the 1999 Zoning Code. The 1999 Zoning Code had the same
required setbhacks for CR zoning as the current zoning code, a 20-foot front and rear
setbacks and 8-foot setbacks for the sides. These structures, however, were
constructed with a 0-foot setback for the most immediate building and 10-foot setbacks
for the northern most buildings. The adjacent structure was also built along the
property line and not set back 8 feet as was required. No variance for these setbacks
could be found.

The E Street right-of-way is 62.5 feet wide. The actual paved travelled way is located 23-
feet from the property line which gives the appearance of a front yard setback for all the
structures along the street. E Street terminates in a large turn-around area to the north
of the existing multi-family residences.

F Street is located on the east side of the property. The majority of the property is
located level with E Street and then at approximately 65 feet from the property line
drops at an approximate 2:1 slope downward to F Street. For stability of the proposed
residence foundation, the residence has been proposed 11 feet away from the edge of
the slope, which leaves a large setback from F Street.




F OTREET

SITE INFORIMATION

- APN: 0881
o PARCEL *10-A
Ve 300 B, STREET
SETBACKS: FRON » ¢
R
485 - 8

T

T ———

V™

N E STREET
N

Proposed plot plan

}

| 1
) AT

Syt
i ;

!

14 )
i

Y

Proposed floor plan



At a minimum, an approval must be based on Findings that the proposal:

(1)

()

3)

That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification.

The proposed variance would allow for the construction of a single family
dwelling with a 0-foot front yard setback versus the required 20-foot. The parcel
is 10,044 square is level with E Street for approximately 65-feet then has a steep
slope dropping downward to F Street. The proposed residence will be placed to
have an 11-foot setback from the top of the slope. Moving the residence closer
to the top of the slope requires additional engineering and construction to
provide stabilization of the residence foundation.

The adjacent property to the north has been constructed with a 0-foot front
yard setback. The garage face would be located on the property line in line with
the adjacent parcel. The right-of-way for E Street is 62.5 feet and the paved
travelled way is located approximately 23-feet from the property line, providing
a setback of the structures from the travelled way (although not from the
property line).

That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

The existing vacant property is level with the E Street elevation and drops
steeply to F Street approximately 65-feet from the west property line. With the
steep slope area, a setback from the slope for a stabilized residential foundation
and a 20-foot front yard setback, the building envelope for the property
provides for a very narrow width for the residence.

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the subject property and
will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious
to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

The setback would be consistent with the adjacent property to the north. The
residence would be located approximately 23-feet from the paved travelled way
of E Street. The proposed design of the property allows for ample onsite
parking. The residence will comply with the Comstock Historic District
requirements. The proposed residence is not expected to detrimentally impact
the surrounding properties or the general public.

Storey County Zoning Code. The property is located within CR Commercial Residentia!

zoning district. Residences are an allowed use and the maximum height allowed is 3
stories or 45-feet. The property is located outside of the Virginia City Downtown District

9



(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will not be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140
Variances and 17.12 General Provisions and 17.30 CR Commercial Residential
Zone when all Conditions of Approval are met.

The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives
and policies of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The Master Plan states,
“The area immediately east of downtown, including most of “D” through “F”
streets, is composed of sporadic clusters of commercial, and single- and multi-
family residential uses separated by large tracts of vacant land. Most of the
buildings and uses in this area are remnants from the 19th Century which to
this day are occupied and used much as they were a century ago.” The
proposed residence will not alter the Mixed Use Commercial Residential Master
Plan designation.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Variance request, the
following Findings with explanation of why should be included in that motion.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

This denial is for a variance (Variance 2018-044) to allow the front yard setback
for the canstruction of a new single family residence to be reduced from the
required 20-feet to the O-feet. The property is located at 381 S. E Street,
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 001-132-
26.

There are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including
shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the
zoning ordinance that would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed
by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone classification.

The granting of the application is not necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant.

That the granting of the application will, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the area of the subject property and will be
materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property
or improvements in the area of the subject property.

11



H. Distances. The reduced front yard setback is approved to be O-feet. All other setbacks
for the proposed and existing structures must be in compliance with the Storey County
Code.

I Easement. The granting of this Variance will not affect any existing easements on the
subject property. No building may be constructed over an easement, ROW or within a
building setback area not otherwise allowed by this Variance.

Public Comment

As of October 9, 2018, Staff has not received any comments from the public regarding this
Variance request.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The mation for approval is
recommended by staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under
Section 3.A of this report. Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A
motion for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown
in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in‘compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve Variance 2018-044 to allow the
front yard setback for the construction of a new single family residence to be reduced
from the required 20-feet to O-feet. The property is located at 381 S. E Street, Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-132-26.

13



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9, 2018 Estimate of time reguired: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Actior: A request for a Parcel Map (File 2018-046) to divide an
existing 72.53 acre parcel into four individual parcels of land. Two parcels will be linear in nature
and follow the Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the second will follow the railroad
alignment. The remaining two parcels will be approximately 26.67 and 42.29 acres in size. The
subject property is located south of Waltham Way on either side of the Amsterdam travelled way,
including the Amsterdam travelled way, and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-092-11,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 3-A-1 as shown on Record
of Survey Map No. 94355.

Z. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all
Conditions of Approval, 1 [County Commissioner], hereby move to approve a Parcel Map (File
2018-046) to divide an existing 72.53 acre parcel into four individual parcels of land. Two parcels
will be linear in nature and follow the Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the second will
follow the railroad alignment. The remaining two parcels will be approximately 26.67 and 42.29
acres in size. The subject property is located south of Waltham Way on either side of the
Amsterdam travelled way, including the Amsterdam travelled way, and having Assessor’s Parcel
Number 004-092-11, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 3-A-1
as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 94355.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
3. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-046

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-46

7. Fiseal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller
8. Legal review required: ____ District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
\,ﬁDepamnent Head __Department Name: Planning
___ County Manager ___ Other agency review:

18. Beard action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
—_—

Agenda Jtem No. ] 7




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775)

STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse

847-1144 — Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owners:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Storey County Planning Department

November 9, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2018-046

Sierra Pacific Power Co. a NV Corporation dba NV Energy

Sierra Pacific Power Co. a NV Corporation dba NV Energy

The property is located along south side of Waltham Way at the location of
Amsterdam Court and has Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-092-11, McCarran,
Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 3-A-1 as shown on
Record of Survey Map No. 94355.

The applicant is requesting approval of a Parcel Map (File 2018-046) to divide an
existing 72.53 acre parcel into four individual parcels of land. Two parcels will
be linear in nature and follow the Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the
second will follow the railroad alignment. The remaining two parcels will be
approximately 26.67 and 42.29 acres in size. The subject property is located
south of Waltham Way on either side of the Amsterdam travelled way, including
the Amsterdam travelled way, and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-092-
11, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 3-A-1
as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 94355.

1. Background & Analysis

A. Site Location and Characteristics. The existing parcel is 72.53 acres in size and is located

south of Waltham Way at the Amsterdam Court travelled way. The travelled way identified
as Amsterdam Court is located on private property and is not a road or right-of-way
dedicated to Storey County. The Parcel Map will create linear parcels of land that will
encompass the Amsterdam Court travelled way and a separate linear parcel encompassing



railroad lines. The two remaining parcels will be located on either side of the travelled way
and railroad parcels. With the exception of the travelled way and rail line, the property is
vacant. The property is located at McCarren but outside of the Tahoe Reno Industrial
Center and is not subject to the Development Agreement between the Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center and Storey County. The 2015 Storey County Zoning Ordinance applies to

this property.

Vicinity and Zoning Map




Site Location

5142 T20N, R22E, M.D.E.EM, POR, SEC. 2 & 3, T19N, R2ZE, M.D.B.8M. 004_09

ft]
SCALLIL" = 2,

REVISED: L1£205014

Existing configuration, Assessor’s Map for APN 004-092-11

B. Proposed Project. The applicant is requesting to divide an existing parcel into four parcels.
Two parcels will be associated with travelled way and railway improvements and two larger
parcels will be vacant 12 Heavy Industrial zoned land. All parcels will have street frontage
along Waltham Way. The two larger industrial zoned parcels will be divided by the
Amsterdam travelled way parcel and the railway parcel and will be approximately 42.29
acres (outlined in yellow below) and 26.67 acres (outlined in orange below). The roadway
parcel will be 1.76 acres (blue checked parcel below) and the railway parcel will be 1.81
acres (pink striped parcel).



L e =y Tendey . - - 1
T Tom | R e o I
i g SR SRS e Py e R I
“u - P susrmies s
[oTg— i e = 4:.1..\ X " .rle“l:l”“ iy ¢
s o, =] T ey i . e ~ =
cm sy e o 3 - -y s
o BT 2T B B T s ="ttamm vl it tpnisais
<o, g, =
R 2 N R Mpel e A e e . S » Sl...l.\l-,n!.:“xu.r . W
TSR T . e 1 PRl EEE W e FESR Wile D T IVR SIS Fue T O eta $O% B0
ANFIIT MM ANt VDI — s - st i TS P W P e WG ETDS
4 "o a.r v .!.@,“ .h.umu .r_&u [+ = 1]
"W P 0 i) s 3 '
R 'y b .
SYW TIOMY e % )
'll =
Poemd e -
S _
:llu. Dene
vl e Sisty | mes] avw | e |
mow  AEaai S.bE wesm | g8 =
— ¥ j.'ql’\f.:.:l"._l‘a L - —_ —
;-b-.. n(!\.!?r aieh | saTm . reis o e - . . -
L P 1 E..I!l_.mcl = ] e . B T
PR L S thabm] Jedrat] dewei| o] w | =
o.. _!inrpn. Auts ..L.-I‘RT.DI- 2 L =
I-|..m||..'u.nh. ArTIall mmesy _£ ] ‘x vy BV
.- {" \-kl— - - - -
ael E e 3 108 S .,
_—y ..l”w.ll.-l.h oiw sovry | wten |0 s 1r et et | Ny
- ~ —t —| 4 Lk -
| WUy .-.l-iil 1 R T e W |
T sV f . L g T BT W™ vmne v e o
Soag
— A.1 e . e s -
sord w tavems Y
v ke | L . ke g gl
3 llﬁjl//
+ 4 SIHEIY ST
ALmAe | B | e \ uak Jaﬂh_—%ﬂ‘_ G PLBE REAEIS
.l-!iv - .
M| e L 1 war
e LT IZ LS i ._ -1 . s e eyl Ty
wrimaeel mw |« ki 2o Pl iyt - - R L
T . _ z v v Tiavme
——— e - . "~
B, aa ) R
o -
A e
b m— M .
~ — Gt
-~ 08 .— WERlY premmy
oo e e — —
& F 1 =
3 . - \ Erem wee wn
o - L samire. e e
B IITe ceems it TV SREIE 0% A O T
repu Caus — g -sipe 1aswvs |3 e
e h S
e s e ., 2o T O
bt BT N ] > =K ot B2 L
- - i ¥ o= e
= AR \ ' rll‘.. ...-,.. ..l.l..l\‘-l..u. -
- ——— - [; ..w - i T, g e
...... == - I e miawrisay —
||J. . & L it —
e T . ———F
s e T v s e 1 - — vonrw i |
ol e TR AN R . L O
Best e . R e T
b e B

Proposed Parcels



C.

View looking south from Waltham Way/Amsterdam Court intersection, railway on the right.

gty e XS

Parcel Maps. Chapter 16.30 of the Storey County Code regulates Parcel Maps along with
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 278.461 through NRS 278.469. This project is not defined as
a “Subdivision” by either Nevada Revised Statutes or Title 16 of the Storey County Code
because it is not creating five or more parcels from a single parcel of land. The application
is defined as a Parcel Map (4 or less parcels) and the applicant has submitted a tentative
map for Planning Commission and the Board of County Commissioners review.

Use Compatibility and Compliance

A.

Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land uses,

zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding the
proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and Storey
County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed division of land is consistent
with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

Land Use Master Plan Zoning
Applicant’s Land Vacant land with industrial i2 Heavy Industrial
developed travelled
wav,{ {Amsterdam
Court} and rail line.
Land to the North Wacant, industrial industrial i2 Heavy Industrial
Land to the East Wacant, industrial Industrial 12 Heavy Industrial
Land to the South industrial — Naniwa industrial 12 Heavy Industrial
power plant, Ryze
Renewables
Land to the West Vacant Industrial 12 Heavy Industrial

Compliance with the Storey County Code - Section 17.35 — Heavy Industrial Zone.

The property is zoned 12 — Heavy Industrial, which requires parcel sizes 3-acres or greater.
The 12 zoning does allow for the land uses listed in 11 zoning. Among the land uses allowed
in the 11 zoning include “parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer



centers, multi-modal transit hubs, parking garages, railroad and light rail infrastructures,
trans tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.” Based on this definition, staff has
concluded that the existing private roadway for Amsterdam Court and the railroad line meet
the 11 use definition for the two proposed linear parcels. The 12 zoning goes on to state that
minimum parcel size for 12 zoned parcel is 3 acres, however, “For 11 light industrial uses in a
heavy industrial zone area, there is a 1 acre minimum.” The two parcels containing the
private roadway and the railroad line meet the 1 acre minimum size requirement, and the
two larger parcels, vacant land zoned 12, meet the 3 acre requirements. No development is
proposed with this application.

Compliance with 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The 2016 Storey County Master Plan identifies this land as Industrial. The Parcel Map
approval is not expected to change the character of the neighborhood and is consistent
with the Master Plan.

Findings of Fact

The Storey County Board of County Commissioners shall cite Findings in a recommended motion for
approval, approval with conditions, or denial. The recommended approval, approval with conditions
or denial of the requested Parcel Map must be based on Findings. The Findings listed in the
following subsections are the minimum to be cited. The Board of County Commissioners may
include additional Findings in their decision.

A.

Motion for Approval. The following Findings of Fact are the minimum to be cited for a
recommendation of approval or approval with conditions. The following Findings are
evident with regard to the requested Parcel Map when the recommended conditions in
Section 4 are applied. At a minimum, an approval or conditional approval must be based on
the following Findings:

(1) This approval is for a Parcel Map (File 2018-046) to divide an existing 72.53 acre
parcel into four individual parcels of land. Two parcels will be linear in nature and
follow the Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the second will follow the
railroad alignment. The remaining two parcels will be approximately 26.67 and
42.29 acres in size. The subject property is located south of Waltham Way on either
side of the Amsterdam travelled way, including the Amsterdam travelled way, and
having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-092-11, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.
The project is a division of Parcel 3-A-1 as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
94355.

(2) The property to be divided is zoned for the intended uses and the density and
design of the division conforms to the requirements of the zoning regulations

contained in the county code.

(3) The proposed parcel map conforms to public facilities and improvement standards
of this county land development code.

(4) The proposed parcel map conforms to the design standards manual.

(5) The developer and successor owners of each new parcel created understand that
the county, county fire protection district, count school district, and special districts



(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

in the county are not obligated to furnish any service, specifically mentioning fire
protection and roads, to the land so divided, and that any public utility may be
similarly free from obligation.

There are no delinquent taxes or assessments on the land to be divided, as certified
by the county treasurer.

The project is not located within an identified archeological or cultural study area, as
recognized by the county.

The proposed parcel map that is adjacent to public lands will not cause substantial
adverse impact to access to public lands, access to public lands provided before the
parcel map will be mitigated, or reasonable alternative access to the adjacent public
lands exists in the immediate vicinity.

The proposed parcel map conforms to the county zoning ordinance and master
plan.

The proposed parcel map accounts for physical characteristics of the land including
floodplains, slope and soils.

The applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Nevada Division of Water
Resources.

B. Motion for Denial. Should a recommended motion be made to deny the Parcel Map

request, the following Findings with explanation of why should be included in that motion.

(D

()

Substantial evidence shows that the Parcel Map conflicts with the purpose, intent,
and other specific requirement of Storey County Code Chapter 17.35 12 Heavy
Industrial Zone, Chapter 17.34 11 Light Industrial Zone, or any other Federal, State,
or County regulations, including NRS 278.461 through 278.469.

The Recommended Conditions of Approval for the Parcel map does not adequately
mitigate potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

A. Approval. This approval is for a Parcel Map (File 2018-046) to divide an existing 72.53 acre
parcel into four individual parcels of land. Two parcels will be linear in nature and follow the
Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the second will follow the railroad alignment. The
remaining two parcels will be approximately 26.67 and 42.29 acres in size. The subject
property is located south of Waltham Way on either side of the Amsterdam travelled way,
including the Amsterdam travelled way, and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 004-092-11,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of Parcel 3-A-1 as shown on
Record of Survey Map No. 94355.



B. General requirements. The Parcel Map must comply with Chapter 16.30 Parcel Maps and
Nevada Revised Statues {NRS) 278.461 through 278.469 relating to the division and
adjustment of land. The Parcel Map must comply with Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to boundary line adjustments and allowed land uses.

C. Final Map. The applicant shall submit to the Storey County Planning Department a Final
Map for review and approval, before the Final Map is recorded with the Office of the Storey
County Recorder. The Final Map must show all parcel boundaries, easements, and right-of-
ways. Upon acceptance of the format, and completion of all other conditions of approval,
the Final Map may be recorded. The Final Map must meet the form and contents pursuant
Chapter 16.30.080 of the Storey County Code.

D. Access and Easements. All existing streets, easements, and utility easements, whether
public or private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the Final Map. All
utility corridor easements, including those identified in the Storey County Master Plan, shall
be shown on the Final Map

E. Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed Parcel Map, the Applicant shall
demonstrate that payment of property taxes on the land subject to the Parcel Map meets
Storey County requirements.

F. Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed Parcel Map shall meet all
requirements pursuant to NRS 278.461 through 278.469.

G. Null and Void. The Parcel Map must be recorded with the Storey County Recorder within 12
months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Map is not recorded by that time, this approval
will become null and void.

H. Indemnification. The Property Owners warrant that the future use of land will conform to
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal
requirements; further, the Property Owners warrant that continued and future use of the
land shall so conform. The Property Owners agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this
Approval.

. Water Rights. Prior to the recording of the proposed Parcel Map, the Applicant shall
provide evidence from the Nevada Division of Water Resources that the proposed Parcel
Map conforms to state regulations.

Public Comment
As of October 23, 2018, Staff has not received any comments on the proposed project

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thereon
as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon
which it bases its decision.



Proposed Motions

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended
by Staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under Section 3.A of this
report. Those findings shouidbe made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and
that motion should cite one ormore of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact
determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either
motion.

A. Recommended Moticn {motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings
under section 3.A of the Staff Report, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to approve a Parcel Map (File 2018-046) to divide an
existing 72.53 acre parcel into four individual parcels of land. Two parcels will bé linear in
nature and follow the Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the second will follow the
railroad alignment. The remaining two parcels will be approximately 26.67 and 42.29 acres
in size. The subject property is located south of Waltham Way on either side of the
Amsterdam travelled way, including the Amsterdam travelled way, and having Assessor’s
Parcel Number 004-092-11, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of
Parcel 3-A-1 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 94355.

B. Alternative Motion {motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under section 3.B of this report and other Findings against
the recommendation for approval with conditions by Staff and the Planning Commission, |
[County Commissioner], hereby move to deny a Parcel Map (file 2018-046) to divide an
existing 72.53 acre parcel into four individual parcels of land. Two parcels will be linear in
nature and follow the Amsterdam travelled way alignment and the second will follow the
railroad alignment. The remaining two parcels will be approximately 26.67 and 42.29 acres
in size. The subject property is located south of Waltham Way on either side of the
Amsterdam travelled way, including the Amsterdam travelled way, and having Assessor’s
Parcel Number 004-092-11, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada. The project is a division of
Parcel 3-A-1 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 94355.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 0- 5
11-9-18
Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field

Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new

business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: Sec attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
____District Attomey

8. Reviewed hy!
x D ent Nead Department Name:
% o,

County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
(] Denied [1 Continued

Agenda Item No. h8



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Business @l

P O Box 526 ¢ Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 » mfield@storeycounty.org

Licenging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 31, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field
Please add the following item(s) to the November 9, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS
OXFORD INSTRUMENTS AMERICA INC - General / 300 Baker Ave ~ Concord, MA

CALIBER HOME LOANS INC — General / 1525 S. Belt Line Rd ~ Coppell, TX
COMPLETE CONCRETE - Contractor / 7481 Deveron Dr ~ Reno, NV
ENLIGHTED INC — General / 930 Benecia Ave ~ Sunnyvale, CA

JAG BROADCAST VIDEO — General / 2051 Canal Rd ~ Sparks, NV
FREEDOM HOME HEALTH LLC — General / 3680 Grant Dr ~ Reno, NV

mEEORP

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 9, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: ITEM WITHDRAWN Discussion/Possible Action: Discussion and possible action on Bill 105,
the first reading of Ordinance No. 18-296, an amendment to Title 17 Zoning of the Storey County Code
involving Chapter 17.30 CR Commercial Residential zone and Chapter 17.28 C Commercial zone to add
a use of private garage to the list of allowed uses, and other properly related matters. Additional
information including, but not limited to, draft text may be obtained from the Planning Department at

775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org, or viewed online at
http://storeycounty.org/517 /Updates. In addition to the provisions of the NRS, any person may

complete and return to the Board a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the
county code and/or zoning ordinance.

2. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

¥

5. Staff shmmal_'x:

6. Sugg(or.ting materials:
L Fiseal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller
8. Legal review required: _ District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
,—fﬁﬁepaﬁmem Head _ Department Name: Planning
____County Manager ___ Other agency review:

18, Beard action:
[1 Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied [

Continued

[S—Y

Agenda Item No. ,q



1000 Bishops Gate Blvd. Suite 300
Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054

25-45 I SO tel. 1 800 444-4554

October 19, 2018

Mr. Gary Hames, Building Official
Storey County

110 Toll Road - P.O. Box 526
Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Notification of Publication of BCEGS Classification

Dear Mr. Hames:

ISO has completed our analysis of the building code adoption and/or enforcement program
improvements Storey County has made and as a result of those improvements; the Building
Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule (BCEGS) Classification that ISO will implement for
Storey County is a Class 2 for 1&2 family residential property and a Class 2 for commercial
and industrial property. The BCEGS classification will apply to new buildings receiving a
Certificate of Occupancy during or after January 1 of the year 2018.

We have enclosed a copy of ISO’s report which will provide you additional information about
the classification process and how ISO evaluated various aspects of your— community’s
building codes and their enforcement. We want to emphasize that the ISO Building Code
Effectiveness Grading program is an advisory insurance underwriting information and rating
tool. It is not intended to analyze all aspects of a comprehensive building code enforcement
program. BCEGS is not for purposes of determining compliance with any state or local law
nor is it for making loss prevention or loss safety recommendations.

ISO reviews a community’s BCEGS classification approximately every five years. Ifa
community significantly changes its building code adoption and/or enforcement program
within that time period and ISO is made aware of this, a reevaluation will be scheduled.

Thank you once again for your cooperation in this important project. Please feel free to
contact ISO at any time for answers to your questions about the BCEGS program.

Sincerely,

r@//mx @.ﬁé&'

Esther Sola, BCEGS Community Mitigation/Technical Analyst
Cell (312) 241-7297

Email: esola@verisk.com

cc: Mr. Pat Whitten, County Manager
26 South B Street - P.O. Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440

Enclosure

SOL



ANNE M. LANGER

STORLY COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
_Storey County s an cqual opportunity provider _____

P.O. Box 496 * 901 § C Strcot* Virginia City, Ncvada 89440

November 1, 2018

Via U.S. Mail and email:
chuck@kozaklawfirm.com

Kozak & Associates, LLC
Charles R. Kozak, Esq.
3100 Mill Street, Suite 115
Reno NV 89502

Mr. Kozak:

I am in receipt of your letter addressed to County Manager, Pat Whitten, dated October 22, 2018,
together with a second agenda request, and other supporting documentation.

1 am advising County Manager Pat Whitten to once again decline to approve the attached Agenda
Action Report (Request), as provided for in Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
#008, also attached herewith for your reference.

This policy was initially approved by the Board of Commissioners on October 6, 2009, and has been
subsequently reviewed and updated by the Board on November 6, 2017. Reasons for denial are as
follows:

The request apparently deals with presenting a petition to the Storey County Board of
Commissioners. When asked, your client provided whiat was assumed to be the language contained.
within each page of the petition which is summarized in brevity as follows:

J Prohibit outside street vendors at events, only allowing Virginia City Merchants to sell
. Allow merchants to choose by majority vote which events occur

+  Require special event participants to be spaced out along the entirety of C Street

. Removal of the VCTC Director

Telephone (77.5) 8470964 o Facsimile (775) 847-1007 » www.sloreycounty.org ® seda@sloreycounty.org

A0IL



Kozak & Associates, LLC
Charles R. Kozak, Esq.
Nowvember 1, 2018

Page 2

Storey County Code §8.28 (see link below for reference) was established and updated by the Storey
County Board of Commissioners. It authorizes the County Manager, or his/her designee, to approve
and/or deny event applications under 8.28.030 (D) and 8.28.060 (A) respectively. The County Manager
designated that authority to the Tourism Director several years back. Accordingly, items 1,2 and 3 of
the petition should be directed to the VCTC, and not the County Board of Commissioners.

The Director of Tourism reports directly to the County Manager as evidenced by the attached
organizational chart. By practice, the County Manager does not, and will not handle personnel matters
within his/her pervue and responsibility in a public meeting. With respect to the Director of Tourism’s
activities, it may require a closed meeting to consider his character competence, etc., under NRS
241.033. This would require that the Tourism Director be given notice, by personal delivery, 5 days in
advance of the meeting that his character competence, etc., would be discussed.

Further, the U.S. Supreme Court case of Minn. State Bd. For Cmty. Colleges vs. Knight, 465 U.S. 271
(1984) states in part that the public “have no constitutional right as members of the public to a
government audience for their policy views.” In addition, the Court stated:

Nothing in the First Amendment or in this Court’s case law interpreting it suggests that the rights
to speak, associate and petition require government policy makers to listen or respond to
individuals’ communications on public issues.

Pat Whitten as County Manager has never denied your client, nor anyone else for that matter, their right
to speak at any public meeting, nor their right to petition the government. Your client, Druscilla
Thyssen, and anyone else has every right to address the Commission during the Public Comment portion

provided for on each agenda.
In closing, you would need to discuss any further legal allegations with me directly.
Sincerely,

(o M- ZJM&WL

Anne M. Langer

See Storey County Link:
l'_nins:/fwww.codcmlhiishimggM@mguMv!#!!gt_:)rev(:ou,n_lypj_ﬁto County0828.himI#8.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

f'..

Meeting date: OC:*‘ o, 201 8  Estimate of time required:
Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda b( Public hearing required [ ]

1,_'l‘_iﬂ;= _/%;}f ‘HO‘Y_I TJo 3 bt/;)é;/(;() ] % M iA (}L{ j /{/ iM(ﬁA"‘lﬁ

2. Recommended motion _ A
3. Prepared by: /)/LUS cc‘//‘!‘ / j 351,
Department: Telephone: 29 { / 7- O C/ 7 /
4, Staffl summsary: 7[
. UG A

5. Supporting materials: ﬂ{/}/: 74' d')'( / go O s ? 3"4 ¥
6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Avsilable: Fund: ____Compfroller
7. Legal review required:

____District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

o Il;zpumnent Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

___ County Manager Other agency review:
9, Board actiom:

oar[ }a Approved (1 Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied (1 Continved

Agenda ltem No.



Li/Ze/z1 parvpdny

SPBSEY SO PRRINE

EEads
Jzmdumlyy
-y sEg
H
SSEERAVBITIA
LT ] cegpury | SR Il-".n-
o {p— — _—
Y DMuCEy
o]y simgmy .l_u-uon-l- -
1290 Bogg gl soung poy 2anag g | sagdssy
= - 2 Razsy somsg ;|ageacy TED FNE5 3A saema PEET) ANy JOIRG paF]
R ﬂ. T s ——— - .. - T |
i3 inyeeeds
iy ARG O .s-MI.rﬁm m__nu! ey |
P somyg | sndang demeayy 152 ESUROL 1mssaleeay A5 JemaEy Geseens) Eeiq ey i [gssT Ao Jop3ayg Muoses P s |
T | {
DR S : - = =
smmag mmmag amszaq 1 samag
UH ( =IO | 2apRaig ey depacag t £y # = >
- P PG Ay aagEnmEEpy mpndee) | SHoM IR usyEmsayng r—— i n oy = Sedong
—_— - T
| | A { __ m _ _
i ]
' _
|
T. nleuy
.._ usnaadeurEy
wwakseg |
.......................... — e .
. % LIRS Asaymy Mnsg aroesy
I — Qndag jay Apdag =0 Ly PR
RE— iz e aneolt . il i -
., [? o] slpar sy par i
2oy Pt BRI “FTS ‘e Saepap) 3 Jo a>wESr PO i Lo
— fmson SmisX oD T RAETTAS ) NITD Jepenaey w _ RIS Ly 108G anEsaEY
T 1 ] — i | S —————— - e
——
$SSTOISTIWGT) PRISAT ; SIBPAF LING) PIFINT I I 1 =i F

1

= =

—

21B40I33]F AJUEOT ASI0IS

(8192) LNVHDZ TYNOILYZINVIHO
AHOSIANELNS P QHLNICIIV "TALITTE ALNNIOD ATHOLS



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 008
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 10-6-2009

REVISED: 11-6-2017
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER

SUBJECT: Agenda requests for Board of County Commissioners’ mectings.

IL

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding request for placement of items on
the Board of County Commissioners’ agenda.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:
A. The county manager is responsible for the agenda of the Board meetings and the approval

of agenda itoms to be placed on the agenda,

B. All requests for agenda items must be made in writing on approved agenda action report
forms and must be submitted to the clerk’s office for placement on the agenda. The request
must include all supporting documentation and must be submitted by noon on Monday of the
week preceding the Board’s meeting. On receipt, the clerk will send the item to the county
manager. The county manager will review the item and cither approve the item for a
subsequent meeting agenda or disapprove the item and respond to the requester in writing the
reasons why it is being denied. If the county manager, or his designee, is unavailable or there
is a conflict, the chair of the Board may approve items for the agenda.

C. Any member of the public, the Board, or County staff may request an agenda item. All
agenda item requests by County staff must be approved by the employee’s immediate
supervisor or department head and the county menager.

D. All ordinances and resolutions must be reviewed, approved, and signed off on by the
District Attorney’s office before placement on the agenda. Once approved for placement on
the agenda the clerk’s office will issue a number. A resolution may be approved by the
Board after a public hearing. An ordinance may be approved by the Board in the required
form after a first reading and a second public hearing in conformance with NRS 244. The
person requesting the ordinance must provide the clerk with a version showing changes by
red cross-out for deleted text and underlined blue italics for new text. The person is also
responsible for providing a clean copy of the ordinance for the agenda packet before the
public hearing and for signature by the Board.

E. Items, including those involving personnel matters, may be subject to closed meeting
provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes and thc Open Meeting Law.

F. Matters raised during public comment that are not on the agenda may not be acted on by
the Board until the matter is placed on subsequent agenda as an action item.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager or his or her designee will review this
policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Meeting date:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title:

2. Recommended motion

3. Prepared by:
Departmemnt:

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available:

7. Legal review required:

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head
County Manager
9. Board action:
[]  Approved
(1 Denied

Telephone:

Fund: Comptroller

District Attorney

Department Name: Commissionet’s Office

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
[ ) WY

Agenda Item No.



FILED

October 22, 20182{15' 0CT 30 AM 930

T Kozak & Associates, LLC
Pat Whitten @ 3100 Mill Street, Suite 115
Storey County Manager =0 Reno, NV 89502
P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Via: Certified Mail
Re: Agenda item request

Dear Mr. Whitten:

I represent Druscilla Thyssen. Ms. Thyssen is requesting that she be place on the Agenda
for the November 9, 2018 meeting of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners so she
can present the Petition to “Support Virginia City’s Merchants” for consideration by the
Commissioners. I have enclosed Ms. Thyssen’s Agenda application along with a face sheet and
signature page from the Petition. Over a thousand individuals have signed the Petition thus far
including V.C. residents and business owners along with members of the legal community.
Federal government, news media, Corvette Club and Rocky Mountain Oyster Cook- Off. The
Ferrari Club of America is on board with the Petition and will be sending representatives to
speak at the November 9™ meeting in relation to its previous letter criticizing the “head of
tourism” and requesting Virginia City business owners “email Pat Whitten”. (See enclosed).

Ms. Thyssen has informed me that you previously denied her request that the Petition be
placed as an item on the Agenda for the October 16, 2018 meeting. In doing so, you simply
stated, without any elaboration, that: “I have denied placement of item on the Commission per
policy.” Mr. Whitten, you are advised that the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution
guarantees the right to petition the government for redress. Not only have you denied Ms.
Thyssen this right but you have denied the signers of the Petition this right as well. If you are
aware of any legal authority that usurps the First Amendment, please cite it to me

Furthermore, since the Petition asks that the VCTC Director be removed from office, it
appears to me that a decision made by you concerning this Agenda item poses a significant
conflict of interests warranting an ethics complaint pursuant to NRS 281A.400 and NRS

281A.420. If you feel otherwise, please specify why.

(775) 322-1239

Fax: (775) 800-1767

c.c. Vanessa Stephens, Marshall McBride, \/
Lance Gilman & Jack McGuffey
Chuck@kozaklawfirm.com



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: /ﬂ‘} O ) (f J ;)’O / g Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda Public hearing required [ ]
g

1. Title: /D_@,q/f HimTo S PO o X0N fgdc wid Gt j VUPZ (_.[{/m"fg
2. Recommended motion

3. Prepared by: D/&(}{S C(\//;'f“ 7A SN

Department: | Telephone: 59 4 / 7» O C/ 7 /

4. Staff summary:

/QM tioy /OO O+ < 7374 %WZW

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

F— ——
[——

Agenda Item No.



SUPPORT VIRGINIA CITY’S

MERCHANTS

The Virginia City Tourism Commission is costing Storey
County taxpayers money and Virginia City merchants’
sales are plummeting. It is reported that the VCTC is losing
more than a hundred thousand dollars per year. The VCTC
is promoting outside enterprises who block the roads,
create havoc on the streets and take business away from the
merchants who struggle year around to keep their doors
open and support Virginia City. Many of the special events
encourage public drunkenness, DUIs and other unlawful
behavior that overtax our law enforcement personnel. The
VCTC is broken and ineffective. ‘

We are petitioning our governmental officials to:

1) Prohibit outside street vendors at events. Only
Virginia City merchants should be allowed to
participate in selling merchandise at special events on

the street.

2) Allow the merchants to choose, by majority vote, the
events invited to Virginia City.

3) Require special event participants to be spaced out
from one end of C Street to the other so visitors are

encouraged to walk the length of C Street.

4) Remove the VCTC Director from office.




PETITION TO
SUPPORT VIRGINIA CITY MERCHANTS

PRINT NAME & ADDRESS / BUSINESS, RESIDENT or VISITOR

1)

Signature & date

PRINT NAME & ADDRESS / BUSINESS, RESIDENT or VISITOR

2)

Signature & date

PRINT NAME & ADDRESS / BUSINESS, RESIDENT or VISITOR

3)

Signature & date

PRINT NAME & ADDRESS / BUSINESS, RESIDENT or VISITOR

4

Signature & date

PRINT NAME & ADDRESS / BUSINESS, RESIDENT or VISITOR

5)

Signature & date



Hill Climb at Virginia City

DEAR VIRGINIA CITY BUSINESS OWNERS

I would first like to thank each and every business owner for the last 47 years of partnering with the
Ferrari Club of America in hosting the annual Hill Climb event in Virginia City. Unfortunately, we have
been informed that Virginia City will be discontinuing the Hill Climb unless the event has the support of
its business community. Therefore, we are reaching out to you and all other local business owners for

your support in continuing this historic event.

The Hill Climb is much more than a historic race; it is a multi-day event which has brought thousands of
people from all over the world to the Virginia City area. We believe the event has been a successful
collaboration with the City, and our club certainly wishes to keep this relationship intact.

The City’s head of Tourism announced his intent to discontinue the Hill Climb due to concerns about the
event not generating adequate revenue for the City. Although | do not have access to exact revenue
figures, the Hill Climb is certainly a revenue-generating event for Virginia City.

Although the race itself is limited to approximately 75 cars, our Club alone brings approximately 150
people to the City throughout the four-day event, most of whom stay in Virginia City. Throughout the
week, we patronize local hotels, restaurants and shops. In addition to our Club, the event attracts
drivers and spectators from around the country who also patronize Virginia City businesses. The race has
also garnered valuable/free publicity for Virginia City through magazines and features in Road & Track,
Automobile magazine, and the Fox affiliate in Reno. Altogether, it is hard to believe that the event
generates less than $100,000 in annual income for the local economy during a non-holiday week.

While we understand that every city faces budgeting issues, we make every effort to ensure that this is a
zero-cost event for Virginia City. Our club provides the payment for traffic control, and we hire and pay
for fire department services relating to the event. If any costs are incurred, they are certainly minimal
and are more than offset by the revenue generated in our support of local businesses.

Our Club also attempts to support your community in other ways. For several years we have worked
with the local high school to raise additional revenue for the high school senior class and its various
graduation activities. Furthermore, just last year, one of the race participants enjoyed the event so much
he donated a school bus to the Storey County School District as a token of his thanks and appreciation.

The Hill Climb event also has historic significance. Nationally, only two hill climb events remain to this
day -- at Virginia City and at Pike’s Peak. It would be unfortunate — both for the Virginia City community
and for auto enthusiasts worldwide -- if such a historic event were to be lost.

We would very much like to continue the Virginia City Hill Climb, but we are unable to do so without
your support. If you support continuing this event, please contact Pat Whitten of Storey County and let
him know about your support. | have been told by Pat Whitten that if there is enough interest from
local business owners in keeping this event, he will talk to the Virginia City’s head of Tourism about

continuing the Hill Climb.



Please email Pat Whitten to let him know that you support continuing the Virginia City Hill Climb; Pat

can be contacted at pwhitten@storeycounty.org

If the City’s decision stands and this historic race is discontinued, then we thank you again for the many
wonderful years you have supported our event.

Thank you all,
Dennis Chiodo

Event Chairman



